
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

     Meeting: Wednesday, 27th November, 2019
   at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No 4)

NOTE: Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd October, 2019.

5 - 46



FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  South Cumbria Community Safety Plan 
 

47 - 50

           (a)  Presentation by Simon Blyth (South Lakeland District  Council) 

           (b)  Egerton Court Hub Update - Presentation by Alison Meadows
                 (CCC) and Jim Baillie (Cumbria Constabulary) 

(D/R) 8.  Housing Management Forum Recommendations  

To consider the recommendations of the Housing Management 
Forum held on 30th October, 2019.

51 - 54

(R) 9.  The Council Plan 2020-2024 
 

55 - 68

(D) 10.  Risk Register and Policy 
 

69 - 82

(D) 11.  Progress on Council Performance Indicators Quarter 2 
 

83 - 90

(D) 12.  Barrow Town Deal and update on Town Centre Funding 
Opportunities 
 

91 - 94

(D) 13.  Budget Timetable and Assumptions 
 

95 - 102

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Barlow
Biggins
Blezard
Brook (Chairman)
H. Edwards
Hamilton
Maddox
R. McClure
W. McClure
Morgan
Pemberton
L. Roberts (Vice-Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Jon Huck
Democratic Services Manager
01229 876312
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Tuesday 19th November, 2019



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Meeting: Wednesday 23rd October, 2019
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Brook (Chairman), Barlow, Blezard, Hamilton, Maddox, R. 
McClure, W. McClure, McEwan, McLeavy, Morgan, Pemberton and A. Thomson.

Also Present:- Sue Roberts (Director of Resources), Janice Sharp (Assistant Director 
- Housing), Caroline Wagstaff (Assistant Operations Manager), Les Davies (Housing 
Maintenance Manager) and Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring 
Officer).

42 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 1 (Minute No. 51) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

43 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Biggins, H. Edwards and 
Roberts.

Councillors McEwan, McLeavy and A. Thomson had attended as substitutes for 
Councillors Biggins, H. Edwards and Roberts respectively for this meeting only.

44 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 4th September, 2019 were agreed as a correct 
record.

45 – Life Leisure

A presentation was given by Aidan Murphy from Life Leisure regarding Barrow Park 
Leisure Centre.

RESOLVED:- To note the presentation.

46 – Housing Management Forum: Recommendations

The recommendations of the Housing Management Forum held on 9th September, 
2019 were submitted for consideration.

N.B. The Minutes are reproduced as Appendix 1 to the Minutes of this meeting.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- That the recommendations of the Housing Management Forum be 
agreed, subject to the Management of Gas Service and Maintenance 
recommendation *2) being amended to read: “To agree that the GasTag Contract 
was awarded as a Specialist Supply”.

Management of Gas Servicing and Maintenance

1) To agree the full introduction of the GasTag software programme from 1st April 
2020 with an initial set up and review period agreed between 1st January, 2020 
and 31st March, 2020;

*2) To agree suspension of Section 11 of the Council’s Standing Orders on the 
grounds that the services required were of a specialised nature and, as such, 
there would be no genuine competition provided by a tendering exercise; and

3) To agree preliminary work to commence integration of the GasTag software 
with CX and other IT systems may commence in advance of the planned 
meeting of Full Council on 21st January, 2020.

Station View, Holker Street: Extra Care/Sheltered Accommodation

To note the proposal Accent had made to increase extra care provision in 
Station View by 13 units in the Borough over the next few years.

Survey of Tenants and Residents (STAR) – Customer Satisfaction

To note and endorse the proposal to conduct a STAR Customer Satisfaction 
Survey.

Legionella Risk Assessments to Shops

1) To note the progress made to date with regards to the Legionella Risk 
Assessments for shops and retrospectively agree to the decision taken by the 
Director of Resources to appoint a suitably qualified plumbing Contractor to 
undertake the essential remedial works in advance of the meeting; and

2) To endorse the approach that the Council meets the initial cost of remedial 
works to shops and, where appropriate, those costs would be recovered from 
the Leaseholder during the rent review and lease negotiation process.

Housing Service – Investment in Social Value

To note the information provided in the Assistant Director - Housing’s report 
and that ongoing updates would be provided at appropriate times.

Next Place Limited: Service Level Agreement 2019/20

1) To note the information on the Service Level Agreement with Next Place 
Limited; and

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



2) To agree to undertake the Service Level Agreement with Next Place Limited 
and that the requirement to obtain quotations be suspended due to the 
specialised services which they provide.

47 – Establishment Changes

The Director of Resources informed the Committee that the report set out proposed 
changes to the top of the Management Structure.

It was proposed that the Executive Director be re-titled as Chief Executive and that 
the Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment post be deleted and a 
Director of People and Place be created. The estimated additional budget, including 
on-costs was £37,270. The change would create and external-focussed director to 
complement the internal-focussed Director of Resources; whose position had 
already been established.

A Recruitment Panel would be appointed with a proportionality of three Labour and 
one Conservative, plus the Chief Executive. The Panel must consist of Members of 
the Executive Committee however it was proposed that on this occasion the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules within the Constitution be varied to allocate a place to 
the Leader of the Council; the two Labour names and one Conservative name 
should be confirmed to the Director of Resources. The Panel would meet towards 
the end of November and interviews would be in December.

An extraordinary meeting of the Council had been proposed for 12th November at 
5.30 pm and that the recruitment process was run externally and internally at the 
same time; the job advertisement would be published following the meeting but 
would not close until after 12th November, 2019.

It was also proposed that a full-time Policy and Engagement Officer post be created 
to provide a resource for the Chief Executive that would support the Chief Executive 
and Authority in the delivery of the Council Plan. The postholder would lead on 
engagement, communications, liaison and relationships, would research and provide 
information and evidence to support strategic decisions and would support the 
development and review of Council strategy and priorities.

Once the Director of People and Place had been recruited it was proposed that any 
restructure or reorganisation of services be delegated to the Chief Executive with the 
provision that the financial implications be agreed with the Director of Resources. All 
structural changes would be carried out in accordance with existing policies and 
procedures. If the structure review resulted in an increase in core revenue budgets 
or a change in headcount, a further report would be presented to this Committee. 
The restructure or reorganisation following the Management Structure changes 
would be concerned with reporting lines and service grouping, it would not be a cost 
cutting exercise.

RECOMMENDED:-

1. To appoint a Recruitment Panel, as a Sub-Committee of the Executive 
Committee, in the proportion of 3:1 plus the addition of the Chief Executive as 
an equal and voting member;

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



2. To note that the Monitoring Officer would call an extraordinary meeting of the 
Council on 12th November, 2019, at 5:30pm;

3. To agree to run the recruitment process externally and internally at the same 
time;

4. To note that the job advertisement would be published following the meeting 
but would not close until after 12th November, 2019;

To recommend the Council:-

5. To agree the re-titling of the Executive Director to Chief Executive;

6. To agree the deletion of the Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built 
Environment together with the creation of the Director of People and Place;

7. To vary the Officer Employment Procedure rules on this occasion and allocate 
a place on the Recruitment Panel to the Leader of the Council;

8. To create a permanent Policy and Engagement Officer post on the grade 
Principal Officer 4;

9. To delegate any restructure or reorganisation of services to the Chief Executive 
with the provision that the financial implications were agreed with the Director of 
Resources or presented to the Executive Committee if there was an increase in 
the core revenue budgets or a change in headcount; and

10. To authorise the Monitoring Officer to amend the Constitution for any changes 
resulting from these recommendations.

48 – Election Duties

The Democratic Services Manager reported that the Council had recognised that 
there were a number of employees who performed election duties and that was 
appreciated.  

To encourage and employees to perform election duties and given the importance of 
the election responsibilities placed on the Council and the Local Returning Officer, 
Management Team proposed that where a direct employee performed the election 
count for parliamentary elections and referendums, that a pro-rata day of annual 
leave was awarded in recognition of their contribution in allowing the Council to meet 
its responsibilities.

The Council currently awarded a pro-rata day of annual leave for those employees 
volunteering as a Presiding Officer, a Poll Clerk, a Polling Station Inspector or as an 
Officer of the Electoral Staff working on polling day.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



If an employee were to be a Poll Clerk and work the count for a parliamentary 
election (or referendum), then they would be awarded two pro-rata days of annual 
leave.  

The HR Department would calculate the pro-rata holiday entitlements and provide 
those to the Democratic Service Manager.

It was hoped that the additional benefit available for election duties would retain the 
current pool of employees performing election duties and would hopefully encourage 
new applications in the future.

The decision was referred to Full Council and Members of this Committee were 
asked to support the immediate implementation of the benefit in the event that a 
parliamentary election was called before the next Full Council meeting.

RECOMMENDED:- 

1. To support the immediate implementation of the benefit in the event that a 
parliamentary election was called before the next Full Council meeting; and

To recommend the Council:-

2. To approve the award of a pro-rata day of annual leave for direct employees 
who performed election duties in relation to parliamentary election and 
referendum counts.

49 – Procurement Matters

The Director of Resources reported on several procurement matters including the 
creation of the Corporate Procurement Board.

On 4th September, 2019 this Committee had agreed that the current venue catering 
and cleaning contract be extended until 31st March, 2020; there was a Member 
Group reviewing the specification that would be used for the tender exercise.  The 
building cleaning contract for offices linked into the discussions that the Member 
Group would cover as the use of the Town Hall was a part of the overall venue 
considerations.  It was proposed that the current building cleaning contract for offices 
be extended to 31st March, 2020, in order to take into account the outcome of the 
Member group discussions.  Both the venue catering and cleaning and building 
cleaning for offices contracts would be tendered and awarded with a service start 
date of 1st April, 2020.

Under existing delegation a 12 month contract had been awarded to 32West to 
deliver a structure PR and content marketing campaign to positively project the 
Council’s brand and attain a stronger reach to customer.

In March 2019, the Council had submitted an Expression of Interest to the 
Government for funding for Barrow Town Centre as part of the Future High Street 
Fund programme.  Barrow Town Centre had been successfully selected to progress 
to the second stage of the programme and would receive £150k to develop an 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Outline Business Case; that would be used to determine whether delivery funding 
would be made available by Government. In order to prepare the Business Case, 
professional support was being obtained through a tender process.

Under existing delegation a contract had been awarded to Brathay to roll-out the 
Council’s Values and Behaviours Framework which had been approved in December 
2018.

The Council’s previous insurance policies had expired on 30th September, 2019, 
and new policies were in place from 1st October, 2019, on a multi-year contract. The 
total value of the insurance premiums was above the threshold for contract award by 
this Committee, but the arrangements for insurance had been delegated to the 
Director of Resources.

Internal Audit and the External Auditor had highlighted some weaknesses in the 
Council’s arrangements for ensuring policies and procedures in relation to 
procurement and contract management were followed.

In order to improve compliance with the Council’s procurement regulations, a 
Corporate Procurement Board had been created. The Board was the Senior Officer 
Group within the Council leading on the governance, managing key activities and 
decision making within the procurement process. The Board was chaired by the 
Director of Resources and aimed to ensure that the Council adopted a planned 
approach to procurement in order to demonstrate the compliance with Contract 
Standing Orders and procurement regulations, transparency, competition and the 
Council’s commitment to achieving value for money.  

The Corporate Procurement Board would record any exceptions and delegated 
awards; a summary of key procurement activity would be included in the quarterly 
financial report. 

RESOLVED:-

1. To agree that the current building cleaning (offices) contract be extended to 
31st March, 2020, to allow the specification to be reviewed alongside the use of 
the Town Hall as a venue and to run the tender exercise;

2. To note that the Council had retained a Social Media and Public Relations 
company as a direct award;

3. To delegate the award of the Future High Street Fund consultancy contract to 
the Executive Director in consultation with the Director of Resources and the 
Chair of the Executive Committee following a tender process;

4. To note that the Council had awarded the values and behaviours roll-out 
programme to Brathay as a specialist/continuing supply; 

5. To note that the Council’s insurance policies had been arranged under existing 
delegation; and

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



6. To note that the Director of Resources had created a Corporate Procurement 
Board.

50 – Appointments on Outside Bodies, Panels, Working Groups etc.

The Democratic Services Manager reported that the Council on 20th May, 2019 had 
given delegated authority to Committees to make appointments to Outside bodies, 
Forums (except Housing Management Forum), Panels etc. in accordance with the 
number and allocation of seats to political groups agreed at the Annual meeting.

The Conservative Group had requested that Councillor Burley replaced Councillor 
Worthington on the Barrow Market Liaison Committee.

RESOLVED:- To agree that Councillor Burley be appointed to replace Councillor 
Worthington on the Barrow Market Liaison Committee.

51 – Establishment Matter

The Director of Resources requested an extension to the relocation Lodging 
Allowance as that was not currently delegated to Officers.

RESOLVED:- To agree that the Lodging Allowance payment period be extended as 
an exception, as detailed in the report.

REFERRED ITEMS

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION

52 – Establishment Matters

The Director of Resources reported that Establishment was the term used for all of 
the posts, full time equivalent and grading required to provide the services and 
functions of the Council. The establishment could be split between the General Fund 
and the Housing Revenue Account for the purposes of the ring-fence, but there was 
no split in terms of policies, procedures and process.

The Committee considered the delegations that currently existed which had been 
agreed in January 2015 and February 2019.

It was proposed that the Officer Delegation be amended to cover all operational 
matters.

A further delegation for the Director of Resources, as a purely financial matter, was:

Setting and managing of allowances including Travel; Subsistence; Relocation; First 
Aid; and On-call arrangements/allowances and others.

The re-grading review work had recently progressed with feedback from the Union 
and a report to this Committee would be presented in due course.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



The arrangements for changes to HR policies remained as recently agreed and the 
principles of the HR policies would not be changed, however policies would be 
updated following the approval of the recommendations made in the report.

RECOMMENDED:- To recommend the Council:-

1. To delegate operational establishment matters, as set out in the report, to the 
Executive Director and the Director of Resources; and

2. To authorise the Monitoring Officer to amend the Constitution for any changes 
resulting from the recommendation.

53 – Furness Economic Development Forum

The Director of Resources reminded the Committee that the Furness Economic 
Development Forum (FEDF) was a public and private sector partnership. Its 
objective was to support the economic growth of the Furness area (defined as the 
area within the Barrow and Furness Parliamentary Constituency boundary) and its 
companies through leadership, direct provision of services by partner organisations, 
by influencing others and coordinating.

FEDF focussed on business engagement; infrastructure; education, skills, 
employment; and quality of life enhancement.  The work of FEDF complemented the 
Council Plan, in particular the priority to develop the local economy to secure a long 
term economic future for the community.

The consultancy services used by FEDF had been funded primarily by a grant from 
the Coastal Communities Fund, and also by this authority and by South Lakeland 
District Council; these funds were now depleted.

The FEDF board had established a budget requirement to continue the work of 
FEDF for a two year period; two years of agreed funding.  The Council had been 
asked to contribute £10,000 per year and that could be funded from existing financial 
reserves, and was subject to the full funding package being secured from other 
funders.  The two year period started back in May 2019 as the FEDF board had 
continued to meet and to work rather than lose any momentum within the projects on 
the go.

The Council was currently working with the FEDF board to review the budget 
requirement, funding and resourcing.  FEDF was not an incorporated body, so one of 
the board members must be the Accountable Body.  It was proposed that the 
Council considered taking on the role following the required assessments 
(compliance, risk, finances) for a two year period.  It was proposed that the final 
Accountable Body decision be delegated to the Executive Director.  If the Council 
was the Accountable Body, then the Executive Director would determine the delivery 
model; consultancy or temporary direct employment.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



RECOMMENDED:- To recommend the Council:-

1. To agree the use of £20,000 as a contribution to support the Furness Economic 
Development Forum over two years, funded from reserves, and was subject to 
the full funding package being secured from other funders;

2. To agree in principle to be the Accountable Body for FEDF for two years; and

3. To delegate the final Accountable Body decision to the Executive Director.

54 – Low Carbon Barrow

The Director of Resources reported that together with Art Gene, the Council had 
prepared and submitted an outline ERDF and Cumbria LEP Local Growth Deal 
applications for a programme of improvements called “Low Carbon Barrow”. The 
programme comprised a range of interventions on the public estate and community 
initiatives to be delivered by the Council and Art Gene working closely with the 
Islands and Bays of Barrow Coastal Community Team.

The Committee considered the high level programme.

The total cost of the programme would be c. £1,900,000 with funding sought from 
the following sources:

ERDF (ESIF); Cumbria LEP (Growth Deal); Barrow Borough Council; Art Gene and 
Grant Recipients.

The contribution from Barrow would equate to c. £81,500 and would provide a 
contribution to the revenue costs of delivering the programme.

The outline ERDF application had been submitted on 30th September, 2019, to meet 
the funder’s deadline. If the application was shortlisted the Council would be required 
to prepare a full application by December 2019; further details of the programme 
would also be presented to this Committee as a delivery plan. In parallel a business 
case seeking Local Growth Deal support had been submitted to Cumbria LEP.  Any 
funding would be dependant on the ultimate success of these applications.

RECOMMENDED:- To recommend the Council:-

1. To support the Low Carbon Barrow project;

2. To endorse the use of the Transformation Reserve for the Low Carbon Barrow 
project as the Council’s match funding and also to fund business case 
preparation required at the next stage of the bidding process;

3. To agree in principle that the Council be the accountable body for potential 
ERDF and Cumbria LEP grants subject to the required assessment by the 
Director of Resources; and

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



4. To delegate acceptance of any ERDF or Cumbria LEP grant offers to the 
Executive Director in consultation with the Director of Resources and the Chair 
of the Executive Committee.

55 – Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) 
Regulations 2006

The Returning Officer reported that in compliance with the Review of Polling Districts 
and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006, every Council in 
England and Wales must have undertaken and completed a review of all of the 
polling districts and polling places in its area.

The review had commenced on 15th July, 2019 and any representations had to be 
received by 16th August, 2019.

Local political parties as well as Barrow Borough Councillors, County Councillors and 
Parish Councils had been consulted and views were also invited from electors within 
the Parliamentary Constituency of Barrow and Furness as well as persons who may 
have particular expertise in relation to access to premises or facilities for persons 
with disability.

A public notice had also been posted outside of the Town Hall, on the Council’s 
website and a Press Release had also been issued.

A representation had been received from Lindal and Marton Parish Council.
 
The Clerk reported that the Lindal and Marton Parish Council were satisfied with the 
existing arrangements.  

A further representation had been received from a member of the public suggesting 
that Dalton Community Church currently had two buildings which would be available 
for polling in Dalton and the use of these would obviate the need to disturb the local 
school at Chapel Street.

The current arrangements and suggested alternative arrangements were discussed.

The Returning Officer considered that no changes be made to the current 
arrangements.

RECOMMENDED:- To recommend the Council that no changes be made to the 
Polling Districts and Polling Places (attached at Appendix 1).

The meeting closed at 3.50 pm.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

BARROW AND FURNESS COUNTY CONSTITUENCY (PART OF)

POLLING PLACE REVIEW 2019

SCHEDULE OF 
WARDS, POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS

POLLING DISTRICT 

 The sub-division of a UK Parliamentary Constituency.  See attached schedule of streets for each individual Polling District

POLLING PLACE

 The geographical area in which a polling station is located.

POLLING STATION

 The room in the building where the poll takes place

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

BARROW AND FURNESS CONSTITUENCY (PART OF)

PARLIAMENTARY POLLING DISTRICTS OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS AND DALTON-IN-FURNESS

WARD POLLING DISTRICTS

WALNEY NORTH AA AB AC
WALNEY SOUTH BA BB
BARROW ISLAND CA
HINDPOOL DA DB DC
CENTRAL EA EB EC
ORMSGILL FA FB FC
PARKSIDE GA GB
RISEDALE HA HB HC
HAWCOAT IA IB
NEWBARNS JA JB JC 
ROOSECOTE KA KB KC
DALTON NORTH LA LB LC
DALTON SOUTH MA MB

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



WALNEY NORTH WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

AA 629 977 Vickerstown Methodist Church
Warren Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Polling Station in Main Hall
Access compliant.

AB 1570 2540 North Walney Primary School
Duddon Drive
Barrow-in-Furness

2 Polling Stations in Main Hall off 
entrance

AC 420 791 North Scale Community Centre
North Scale
Barrow-in-Furness

Slopped access to Centre
Polling Station in Main Hall

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



WALNEY SOUTH WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

BA 1725 2929 South Walney Infants School
Via Strathmore Avenue
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access via Strathmore Avenue
Slopped access into the building
2 Polling Stations in Classroom

BB 813 1201 St Columba’s Catholic Church
Church Lane
Barrow-in-Furness

Polling Station in foyer of the Church
Access compliant.

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



BARROW ISLAND WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

CA 1783 1630 St John’s Church
Island Road
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
Polling Station in Church Foyer adjacent 
to entrance

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



HINDPOOL WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

DA 2120 1819 St James’ Community Centre
Blake Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Slopping access to rear of building
2 Polling Stations either side of entrance 
door in Hall and Vestry

DB 813 880 St Mark’s Church
Buccleuch Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access to main Church door
Polling Station in meeting room to right 
of main entrance

DC 605 641 The Forum
Duke Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
Polling Station in ante room beyond 
café/bar.

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



CENTRAL WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

EA 840 1007 The Forum
Duke Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
Polling Station in ante room beyond 
café/bar.

EB 949 1226 Sacred Heart Catholic Primary School
Lumley Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access from School Playground.  
Access compliant from Lumley Street.
Polling Station in Classroom

EC 458 534 Children’s Centre Greengate
Greengate Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access to main entrance
Polling Station in meeting room

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



ORMSGILL WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

FA 1325 1963 St Matthew’s Community Halls
Highfield Road
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access to Halls from Highfield Road
Polling Station in Main Hall

FB 541 889 St Francis Church
Schneider Road
Barrow-in-Furness

Main door access stepped.  

FC 976 1461 Childrens Centre Ormsgill
Millstone Avenue
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
Polling Station in Main hall

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



PARKSIDE WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

GA 1690 2730 Trinity Church Centre
Warwick Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access via Warwick Street
2 Polling Stations in Games Room to 
right of entrance

GB 777 1550 Abbey Road Baptist Church Hall
Abbey Road
Barrow-in-Furness

Slopped access via West Avenue
Polling Station in Main Hall

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



RISEDALE WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

HA 1669 2436 Cambridge Primary School
Cambridge Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Access from rear of building.
2 Polling Stations in Main Hall 

HB 564 955 Parkside GGI Academy
Greengate Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Steps down to entrance from Greengate 
Street.  Flat access via Cecil Street
Polling Station in Foyer which links both 
entrances

HC 719 1177 Cambridge Primary School
Cambridge Street
Barrow-in-Furness

Access from rear of building.
1 Polling Station in Classroom

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



HAWCOAT WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

IA 1184 2113 St Paul’s Church
Abbey Road
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
2 Polling Stations in the Church Foyer (1 
Newbarns Ward and 1 Hawcoat Ward)

IB 1195 2011 Hawcoat Community Centre
Skelwith Drive
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access to Centre
Polling Station in Main Hall

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



NEWBARNS WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

JA 353 648 St Paul’s Church
Abbey Road
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
2 Polling Stations in the Church Foyer (1 
Newbarns Ward and 1 Hawcoat Ward)

JB 1396 2605 Beacon Hill Methodist Church Hall
Holyoake Avenue
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
1 Polling Station in Main Hall to right of 
entrance

JC 763 1244 St Aidans Church Hall
Middle Hill
Barrow-in-Furness

Main door has a step into the foyer. 
Permanent ramped entrance.  Access 
compliant.
Polling Station in Main Hall.

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



ROOSECOTE WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

KA 250 416 Rampside Village Hall
Rampside
Barrow-in-Furness

Flat access
Polling Station in Meeting Room off 
main foyer entrance

KB 630 1074 Roose School
North Row
Barrow-in-Furness

Slopped access to classroom at rear of 
School in playground
Polling Station in Classroom

KC 1306 2415 Yarlside Academy
Redoak Avenue
Barrow-in-Furness

Slopped access into the building.
2 Polling Stations in Main Hall.

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



DALTON NORTH WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

LA 943 1524 Chapel Street Infants’ School
via Chapel Street or Broughton Road
Dalton-in-Furness

Flat access from playground to main 
door
Polling Station in Classroom to left of 
entrance (Dalton North)
Building also used for 1 Dalton South 
Polling Station

LB 325 557 Buccleuch Hall
The Green
Lindal-in-Furness

Permanent ramp.
Polling Station in Hall off entrance

LC 1564 2831 Askam Community Centre
Duke Street
Askam-in-Furness

Flat access
2 Polling Stations in Main Hall off 
entrance

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



DALTON SOUTH WARD

POLLING 
DISTRICT/POLLING 

PLACE

NUMBER OF 
PROPERTIES

NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS

POLLING STATION ACCESSIBILITY

MA 1386 2050 Chapel Street Infants’ School
via Chapel Street or Broughton Road
Dalton-in-Furness

Flat access from playground to main 
door
Polling Station in Classroom opposite 
entrance (Dalton South)
Building also used for 1 Dalton North 
Polling Station

MB 1467 2658 Dalton St Mary’s C of E School
Coronation Drive
Dalton-in-Furness

Permanent ramped entrance to front 
entrance.  There is also an access door 
directly into the room which has a step.
2 Polling Stations in main hall

Returning Officer’s Proposals or comments
No changes proposed at this stage

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Monday 9th September, 2019
at 2.00 p.m. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Barlow, Blezard, Brook, Gawne, W 
McClure, McEwan, McLeavy and Robson.

Tenant Representatives:- Mrs M. Anderson and Mr A. McIntosh.

Officers Present:- Janice Sharp (Assistant Director - Housing), Les Davies 
(Maintenance and Asset Manager and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer 
- Member Support). 

7 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 (Minute No. 16) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

8 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Robson Declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 7 – Management of Gas 
Servicing and Maintenance (Minute No. 11) as his Brother was a Gas Technician 
employed by the Council.  He also declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 11 – 
Housing Service – Investment in Social Value (Minute No. 15) as his Partner was a 
Senior Manager at Women’s Community Matters.

9 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Burley.  Councillor 
McLeavy had attended as a substitute for Councillor Burley for this meeting only.

10 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13th June, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

11 – Management of Gas Servicing and Maintenance

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report updating Members on 
compliance with Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998 in respect of all 
gas appliances in premises let by the Council.  It had been noted that all gas 
appliances in premises let by the Council must be checked by a Gas Safe Registered 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



Engineer within 12 months of the previous check and that the Council was presently 
fully compliant with that legislation.

It had been noted that on 11th June, 2015, Members had agreed to the appointment 
of Sure Group to carry out the delivery of each annual gas safety inspection.  
Members had been advised that Sure Group utilised a software system (Vixen) that 
was old and provided limited reporting and limited visibility of real time information.  In 
view of that, Officers had reviewed the leading web-based software solution called 
GasTag to identify if it offered increased resilience with regards to ensuring 
compliance with the gas regulations. 

The Assistant Director - Housing reported that GasTag records and updates details 
regarding all gas appliances, flue arrangements and associated gas supplies and 
controls on site, their operation, any leaks and who had worked on them so people 
knew in real time that they had been properly inspected and serviced.  The mobile 
application ensured correct work was done at the right time by the right people and 
verified the Engineer’s gas credentials via a direct link to the national Gas Safe 
Register. 

She reported that it was envisaged that the new software would fine tune Sure 
Group’s existing gas servicing procedures and drive performance improvements and 
cost savings.  Additional benefits included a Tenant Area where Tenants could view 
gas-related information regarding their property as well as live data transfers between 
GasTag and the Council’s Housing Management System (Cx) allowing additional 
reporting and cost modelling over time. 

Due to the specialised nature, the GasTag software provided a number of unique 
features that made it impractical to seek estimates from more than one supplier.  In 
view of that, Members had been requested to agree to classify the appointment of 
GasTag as an Exception under Section 11 of the Council’s Contract Standing Orders 
on the grounds that the services required were of a specialised nature and, as such, 
there would be no genuine competition provided by a tendering exercise.

The GasTag Contract had been designed to run for a five year period from 1st April, 
2020 and Members’ approval had been sought to agree to undertake a three-month 
lead-in period from 1st January, 2020 to 31st March, 2020 to iron out any problems 
associated with the set up and installation of the software.  It had also been noted 
that the Contract included independent auditing by Morgan Lambert, from Year 2 
onwards to carry out a range of gas auditing functions. 

The cost to provide and maintain GasTag was £9.00 per property in Year 1 of the 
Contract, increasing to £10.00 per property in years 2 to 5.  The current number of 
gas serviceable properties was 2,583 (at £9 per property equated to £23,247 in Year 
1).  

It was noted that the Contract included all set up and ongoing development costs, 
including integration with the Housing software system (Cx) and that the annual cost 
of the GasTag software would be funded from the Housing Revenue Account.

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



Members had been requested to agree that the preliminary work to commence 
integration of the GasTag software with Cx and other IT systems could commence in 
advance of the planned meeting of the Full Council on 21st January, 2020.

RECOMMENDED:- 

1. To agree the full introduction of the GasTag software programme from 1st April, 
2020 with an initial set up and review period agreed between 1st January, 2020 
and 31st March 2020;

2. To agree the suspension of Section 11 of the Council’s Standing Orders on the 
grounds that the services required were of a specialised nature and, as such, 
there would be no genuine competition provided by a tendering exercise; and

3. To agree preliminary work to commence integration of the GasTag software 
with CX and other IT systems may commence in advance of the planned 
meeting of Full Council on 21st January, 2020.

12 – Station View, Holker Street: Extra Care/Sheltered Accommodation

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report informing Members that Accent 
had proposed to change the Station View Scheme to 100% extra care 
accommodation following consultation with Residents.

She reported that in 2009 the site on which Station View had been built was acquired 
and subsequently cleared by the Council.  The site had been released to Accent to 
develop accommodation for older people within the Borough.

Station View consisted of 41 units of accommodation in total: 28 extra care units (mix 
of low, medium and high care needs) and 13 units of sheltered accommodation. 

The extra care units were allocated based on need with Health & Social Care 
Directorate taking the lead.  The sheltered units were allocated through Cumbria 
Choice, the County-wide choice-based lettings scheme of which the Council and 
Accent were Partners.

The development of Station View had been a successful addition to the provision of 
accommodation for the frail and elderly in the Borough.  The project was consistently 
100% occupied with an active waiting list.

The development had, however, impacted on demand for existing sheltered 
accommodation/ground-floor accommodation as applicants aspired to live in Station 
View.  Consequently, there were applicants on the Cumbria Choice waiting list with 
priority bandings due to medical conditions who were not bidding as they were 
waiting for a vacancy at Station View.

Over the last two years, an added issue had arisen with the mix of sheltered and 
extra care units due to the differing needs of the Residents.  Those Residents in the 
sheltered units displayed intolerances to Residents in need of extra care when using 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



the shared facilities, i.e. restaurant and communal area.  That caused distress to 
Residents and required intensive management intervention.  

Statistics published in Cumbria County Council’s strategy for provision for older 
people, predicted that there would be a demand of 340 units of extra care 
accommodation within the County.  As stated previously, there were currently only 28 
units in the Borough.

In view of the increasing demand for extra care units and the issues arising in a 
mixed scheme, Accent had proposed to change Station View to 100% extra care, 
increasing the units from 28 to 41.

The Assistant Director - Housing informed Members that Accent had advised that 
they would be carrying out a consultation with Residents in the next month regarding 
the proposed change.  It was planned that it would be phased over the next few 
years as tenancies of sheltered accommodation ended.  The mixed community 
model would continue with split low, medium and high care needs receiving extra 
care in the 41 units. 

RECOMMENDED:- To note the proposal Accent had made to increase extra care 
provision at Station View by 13 units in the Borough over the next few years.

13 – Survey of Tenants and Residents (STAR) – Customer Satisfaction

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report informing Members of the 
Housing Service’s proposal to undertake a Tenants’ Satisfaction Survey to enable 
continued promotion of Tenant involvement and as a basis for action planning in 
respect of future service review and development.

She advised Members that Managers and the Tenants’ Forum had discussed and 
agreed that the information obtained from the 2015 survey was now out of date and 
should not be relied upon for benchmarking performance or for service review and 
development.  It had been agreed that a further STAR - Tenants’ satisfaction survey 
should be carried out to obtain an up to date view of how satisfied Tenants were with 
the services they received.

As part of the budget for 2019/20, £10,000 had been allocated to conduct the STAR 
Survey during 2019.  In line with the Council procurement purchasing procedure, two 
specific quotations would be obtained and evidenced. 

The STAR survey had been summarised as:-

1. A flexible survey which could be conducted in-house or by commissioning an 
external market research company;

2. There were a number of core questions but users could also include any of the 
set optional questions or alternatively include their own specifically worded 
questions;

3. A survey which could be conducted across the whole stock (census) or across a 
sample of the stock (sampling); 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



4. A survey which could be adapted to target different categories of Tenants and 
Residents, e.g. general needs, supported, older people, and leaseholders; and

5. A survey which could be undertaken using a variety of methods such as postal, 
face to face, telephone, on-line.  Postal had been suggested as the primary 
method with the option to compliment this using other methods. 

There were many things to be gained from undertaking the STAR survey including:-

1. It facilitated meaningful Tenant involvement;
2. It enabled scrutiny of services and therefore assisted with regulatory 

compliance in co-regulation;
3. Results could be used to benchmark performance against other housing 

providers;
4. It enabled effective service review and development;
5. It assisted in promoting value for money as trends in performance could be 

addressed earlier; and
6. It supported good practice throughout the housing sector.

The Assistant Director - Housing advised Members that there was no compulsory 
requirement to carry out a Tenants’ satisfaction survey but it was regarded as good 
practice to do so.  Surveys provided opportunities for Tenants to be involved in the 
review and development of services and in addition, provided tangible results which 
could be benchmarked against other housing providers and enable effective 
performance management. 

She added that the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) housing regulatory 
framework remained set around the principle of co-regulation, encouraging providers 
to undertake robust self-regulation which incorporated effective Tenant involvement.   
Since surveys conducted on a large scale were considered more representative and 
therefore more accurate than smaller surveys, STAR would be a useful tool in 
assisting the co-regulation process and helping with regulatory compliance.  

RECOMMENDED:- To note and endorse the proposal to conduct a STAR customer 
satisfaction survey.

14 – Legionella Risk Assessments to Shops

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report to update Members on the 
ongoing Legionella Risk Assessment process and the compliance of shops with 
regards to water management and water safety.

She advised that the Housing Department presently managed 19 shop premises that 
were located on several housing estates in Dalton, Ormsgill, Walney and Newbarns. 

It had been noted that at the meeting on 18th January, 2018, Members had agreed a 
number of key compliance principles for shops that included fire safety, gas and 
electrical systems as well as water supply and water storage systems. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



She advised that the Council had a duty to inspect the existing water supply and 
water storage installation and equipment installed in shops to ensure it complied with 
BS8580:2010 (Quality – Risk Assessments for Legionella Control – Code of Practice) 
and ACoP L8 (The Control of Legionella Bacteria in Water Systems): 2013.

Following that agreement Officers had appointed a suitably qualified Legionella 
specialist (Bio-Chemica) to conduct a detailed Legionella risk assessment of all shop 
premises.  17 of the 19 risk assessment surveys had been completed by Bio-
Chemica in May 2019.  The remaining two shops would be assessed in August 2019.  
In general terms the risk assessment reports indicated the following areas of 
concern:-

Matters of Evident Concern - Highest Priority 

• None Identified 

Matters are Critical - High Priority 

• Confirm management responsibilities 

Matters are Essential - Medium Priority

• Replace non-compliant flexi hoses 
• Remove identified dead legs
• Disconnect heating filling loop
• Replace damaged water storage tank
• Back flow prevention required where identified 
• Flushing regime for little used outlets 
• Inform Tenants of legionella management 
• Launch a documentation system 

Matters are Important - Low Priority 

• None Identified

On 21st June, 2019 Bio-Chemica had provided Officers with 17 of the 19 Legionella 
risk assessments for shops with two categories of recommendations that required 
action within one month and three months. 

With regards to the ‘Critical’ concerns identified, Officers had written to the 17 shop 
Leaseholders on 10th July, 2019 to outline the Management Responsibilities. 
Officers would be conducting periodic visits to ensure the shops remained compliant.

Due to the urgency of the identified ‘Essential’ works, Officers had appointed a 
suitably qualified plumbing Contractor to complete the works within the three-month 
timeframe.  Officers had sought approval from the Director of Resources prior to the 
appointment of the plumbing Contractor, as by delaying the appointment until the 
next scheduled meeting of the Housing Management Forum would have resulted in a 
period of non-compliance.

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



The Assistant Director - Housing had requested Members’ retrospective approval to 
undertake that work in advance of this meeting and to agree that the cost of the 
remedial work be initially met by the Council and, where appropriate, recovered from 
the shop leaseholder during the rent review and lease negotiation process.

RECOMMENDED:-

1. To note the progress made to date with regards to the Legionella Risk 
Assessments for shops and retrospectively agree to the decision taken by the 
Director of Resources to appointment a suitably qualified plumbing Contractor 
to undertake the Essential remedial works in advance of the this meeting; and

2. To endorse the approach that the Council meets the initial cost of remedial 
works to shops and, where appropriate, those costs would be recovered from 
the Leaseholder during the rent review and lease negotiation process.

15 – Housing Service - Investment in Social Value

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report providing information to 
Members on the investment of social value which was being delivered through the 
Housing Service’s maintenance arrangements.  She advised that the Council 
delivered the majority of its ongoing investment through a framework arrangement 
owned by Procure Plus Holdings (PPH), a not-for-profit organisation and a 
fundamental requirement was to re-invest in social value initiatives in the area in 
which their customers operated.

She advised that since delivering the maintenance plan through PPH, efforts to 
invest in social value had continued.  The Council paid a set percentage for using 
PPH’s framework, but as they were a not-for-profit organisation, any profits were re-
invested based on the value of the maintenance delivered by the Council.

She reported that during the period of working with PPH, she had provided 
assistance to focus on organisations within the Borough who could assist with the 
process.  PPH’s target being to create employment opportunities, focusing on 
Council estate areas.

As reported at Housing Management Forum in March, 2018 Re:vision, the charitable 
arm of PPH, had been working directly with Inspira based in Barrow.  Inspira had 
been commissioned to support 10 people (known as outcomes) from Barrow 
Borough Council Housing communities into employment during 2018/19.

In 2019/20, the amount Barrow Borough Council Maintenance Section is forecast to 
spend through PPH frameworks is £3,730,000 during the whole of the financial year.  
(At 1st July, 2019, the Council had spent £875,884).  As such, Re:vision would be 
aiming for 12 outcomes to be supported during 2019/20.  There were currently six 
active trainees in Barrow: three at Hughes Brothers and three at Keith Wilsons 
(Electrical Contractor).  These are trainees that started in 2018 and would continue to 
receive support this financial year.  Since the new framework started on 1st April, 
2019, one trainee had started at DLP Services.  It was projected that two additional 
new trainees would be started before 31st March, 2020 with Hughes Brothers as a 
result of the work the Council carries out through PPH frameworks.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



In addition to the above framework opportunities, Re:vision have a Service Level 
Agreement with the local employment agency, Inspira, to work with them to deliver 
new employment opportunities.  Inspira still have two outcomes to deliver from last 
year’s project and realistically this financial year they would only be able to deliver an 
extra four outcomes.

PPH had recently been awarded a 12-month Construction Skills Fund (CSF) 
awarded by the Department of Education and Construction Industry Training Board 
for the North West to deliver construction-related training to meet the skills gap in the 
construction sector.  Re:vision were hoping to work with Inspira and local 
construction Contractors to deliver further outcomes utilising that funding.  This 
initiative was complimentary to the PPH framework activity and was not classed as a 
framework outcome unless the job met the quality threshold that Re:vision works to.

There were two ways PPH could work with Inspira using the CSF fund:

 PPH would provide a day’s ‘bolt on’ to Inspira’s current Construction Skills 
Certificate Scheme (CSCS) which they run which they broker outcomes for.  
(These were opportunities directly secured by PPH with local employers).  This 
would result in those candidates receiving enhanced training and the Employers 
having more choice in determining the pre-entry training that would suit their 
business, thereby encouraging the Employers to offer more vacancies.

 Re:vision would broker employment opportunities with Barrow Employers and 
would run a CSCS course from Inspira with their candidates.  Inspira were next 
planning to run a CSCS course in August, so it was hoped the above two options 
can be combined. 

The Assistant Director – Housing advised that the Council’s Housing Service worked 
in close partnership with Women’s Community Matters (WCM) and that she had 
facilitated a meeting with WCM and Re:vision.  As a consequence, Re:vision were 
now planning to work with WCM and link into their Building Better Opportunities 
Project (a project which focused on moving women one step closer to employment, 
education or training).  Re:vision intended to design a bespoke training course, 
primarily for women which would be an early intervention stage in raising awareness 
about roles within the construction sector.  The course would also provide an 
opportunity of a short-term placement (not compulsory to attend).  Re:vision were 
also in the process of sourcing training and design course material to run a week long 
introduction course into construction which would be less focused on employment, 
but with more emphasis on helping women feel more independent within the home, 
learning some DIY skills, have taster sessions in some trades and gaining a better 
understanding of employment opportunities in the construction industry that might 
suit them.  It was hoped that from that course some women may realise they were 
interested in working in construction and Re:vision would arrange work placements 
appropriately.  It was envisaged the course would take place mid to late September, 
2019 after the Schools’ summer holidays.  

The PPH framework remained the Council’s preferred method of delivery for financial 
and ease of delivery on a day-to-days basis, however, the social value further 
supported that approach.  

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



RECOMMENDED:- To note the information provided in the Assistant Director – 
Housing’s report and that ongoing updates would be provided at appropriate times.

16 – Next Place Limited:  Service Level Agreement 2019/20

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report providing Members with 
information on the Service Level Agreement (SLA) proposed to be put into place with 
Next Place Ltd, to provide the Council’s Housing and Homelessness functions with 
expertise and guidance in areas such as, but not limited, to the following:-

• Homelessness Legislation;
• Homelessness Assessments and Reviews; and
• Housing and Homelessness systems.

She reported that Next Place Ltd offered a specialist service which focused on 
assisting Local Authorities in meeting their duties as a statutory homelessness 
service provider, whilst also providing guidance on best practice, project 
management and so on.  The service offered aimed to assist Councils in providing 
exceptional services to homeless applicants, decreasing local homelessness rates 
and increasing the likelihood of sustainment of housing, which delivered excellent 
value for money for local Residents.

RECOMMENDED:- 

1. To note the information on the Service Level Agreement with Next Place 
Limited; and

2. To agree to undertake the Service Level Agreement with Next Place Limited 
and that the requirement to obtain quotations be suspended due to the 
specialised services which they provide.  

17 – Planned Investment and Planned Maintenance Expenditure 2019/20

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted information relating to the Planned 
Investment and Planned Maintenance Programme for 2019/2020.  The information is 
attached at Appendix 1 to these Minutes.

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

18 – Performance Information Report

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted information relating to the Housing 
Performance Indicators for 2019/2020 in comparison with previous years.  The 
information is attached at Appendix 2 to these Minutes.  

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

The meeting closed at 2:50 p.m.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



SCHEME PROCUREMENT
TYPE

AVAILABLE
BUDGET

EXPENDITURE
TO DATE

ESTIMATED
START DATE

ESTIMATED
COMPLETION

DATE
CONTRACTOR Leasholders

affected?

GREENGATE ESTATE RE-ROOFING WORKS Procure Plus Holdings £900,000 £ 14,978 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing No

WINDOW & DOOR REPLACEMENTS
VARIOUS HOUSING AREAS Procure Plus Holdings £200,000 £ 135,618 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 RICHMOND

JOINERY No

WALNEY RENDER & DAMP PROOFING
WORKS Procure Plus Holdings £320,000 £ 6,488 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing Yes

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-ROOFING WORKS
(HOUSES) Procure Plus Holdings £217,500 £ - 1.9.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing No

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-ROOFING WORKS
(FLATS) Procure Plus Holdings £208,000 £ 53,315 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 DLP Roofing Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE LIGHTING Procure Plus Holdings £40,000 £ - 1.11.2019 31.3.2020 K WILSON Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings £10,000 £ - 1.1.2020 31.3.2020 GEORGE JONES Yes

EWAN CLOSE REPLACMENT DOORS Procure Plus Holdings £96,000 £ - 1.10.2019 31.3.2020 SSS GROUP Yes

REWIRES Procure Plus Holdings £306,000 £ 126,000 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 K WILSON No

HEATING Procure Plus Holdings £420,000 £ 263,000 1.4.2019 31.3.2020 AFM GAS Ltd No

PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings £180,000 £ - 17.8.2019 31.3.2020 G JONES Yes

HOUSING MAINTENANCE COMMITMENTS 2019-2020

Funding Available EXPENDITURE
TO DATE

Weekly
Available

Gross Comm. as a % funds
available

Tenant Demand Repairs £ 1,241,357 £ 353,710 £ 23,872 28%

Voids £ 538,997 £ 227,226 £ 10,365 42%

Gas Servicing £ 311,572 £ 121,626 £ 5,992 39%

Decoration Vouchers £ 30,000 £ 5,307 £ 577 18%

Environmental Impmts £ 5,000 £ 318 £ 96 6%

Disabled Adaptations £ 100,000 £ 32,965 £ 1,923 33%

Electrical Testing £ 61,000 £ 36,862 £ 1,173 60%

Door Entry Maintenance £ 19,176 £ 13,326 £ 369 69%
Gas - Building/Replacement £75,000.00 £12,905.00

 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

 

Arrears & Collection- Dwellings (exc. Dispersed) Actual 
2017/18

Apr-Mar 
2018/19

Apr-June       
2019/20

Apr-
Sept 

2019/20

Apr-Dec 
2019/20

Apr-
Mar 

2019/20
£ Rent & Service Charges due (Excluding empty properties) £10,913,680 £10,638,866 £2,658,733    

£ Rent loss due to empty dwellings (voids)   £47,423.82    

£ Rent collected from Current Tenants       

£ Rent collected from Former Tenants       

Total Rent collected as % of rent due       

£ Current Arrears £473,551 £477,382 £526,760    

£ Former Arrears £300,205 £279,954 £306,171    

£ Write Offs (Gross) £71,297 £142,675 £0    

No. tenants evicted for rent arrears 19 14 2    

£ Rent Arrears UC claimants       

Arrears & Collection - Other Properties       

£ Rent arrears Dispersed  (Homeless) £2,586 £2,381 £2,091    

£ Rent arrears Garages £7,789 £3,860 £5,686    

£ Rent Arrears Shops £6,337 £3,565 £8,099    

£ rent loss due to empty Dispersed (Homeless)       

£ rent loss due to empty Garages       

£ rent loss due to empty Shops   £0    

Voids & Lettings (General Needs)       

Total Dwellings 2579 2557 2555    

Total number of re-lets 255 207 60    

%  of re-lets accepted on first offer 63.1% 57.4% 58.3%    

Number of re-lets that underwent Major Works 84 73 19    

Average relet time in days (Standard) 44 52 54    

Average re-let time in days (Major Works) 74 76 113    

Average re-let time in days (all re-lets) 54 61 65    

Number of units vacant and available for letting at 
period end 

7 5 9    

Number of units vacant but unavailable for letting at 
period end 

28 43 38    

No. of Tenancies terminated 189 223 55    

Dwelling void at end of reporting period  48 46    

Tenancy Turnover % 7.3% 8.7% 2.2%    

ASB       

Number of new anti-social behaviour cases reported       

Number of closed successfully resolved ASB cases       

Number of closed unresolved anti-social behaviour cases       

Repairs & Maintenance       

Average number of calendar days taken to complete repairs       

Percentage of repairs completed at first visit       

% all responsive repairs completed on time       

Number Repair Orders completed       

Average Responsive repairs per property       
Appointments kept as a percentage of appointments made 

      

Page 41

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4



Major Works & Cyclical Maintenance Actual
2017/18

Apr-Marc
2018/19

Apr-June
2019/20    

Percentage of dwellings with  a gas safety certificate renewed 
by anniversary  100% 100%    

Percentage of homes that fail to meet the Decent Homes 
Standard   0%    

*Average SAP rating of dwellings at end of year (based on RD 
SAP 9.83)       

Homelessness FROM APRIL 2018       

Average days in temporary (dispersed) accommodation 58.8 61 61    

Average days in B&B accommodation 5.81 6.6 18    

Number of triage assessments 528 137    

Number of Homeless Prevention cases opened 146 29    

Number of Homeless Relief cases opened 142 45    

Number that failed to attend appointments 73 27    

Number of Successful Prevention cases 95 26    

Number of Successful Relief cases 77 40    

Number cases closed without successful outcome 34 20    
Number of decisions made that main housing duty is not 
owed 16 4    

Number owed the main housing duty (final duty)

Unable to 
provide 

until 
2018/19

6 0    

Employees       

Average permanent employee headcount 43 50 49    

Number of leavers 9 6 0    

Ave. working days lost / sickness absence 11.3 14.1 21.3    

Customer Complaints       

The number of Stage 1 complaints upheld in the year 3 5 awaiting info    

Water Charge Collection       

Total number of direct debit payers       

Number of rent agreements where a water support tariff or 
help to pay scheme is in place 552 801 875    

Housing Register       

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of applications that 
are Active or Under Review Active for the period shown 1127 1419 1430    

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of new applications 
submitted in the period shown 865 835 210    

Housing Stock       

Houses 1205 1188 1185    

Flats 1218 1213 1214    

Bungalows 156 156 156    

General Needs Dwellings 2579 2557 2555    

Dispersed 13 17 18    

Homeless (Cold Weather Provision) 0 0 0    

New Lives Project 2 2 0    

Adelphi Court 12 12 12    

Total Dwelling Stock 2606 2588 2585    

Community Centres 5 4 4    

Leaseholds 215 219 219    

Garages 504 504 504    

Shops 19 19 19    

TOTAL PROPERTIES 3349 3334 3331    

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4



RTB & Land Values       

£ Houses £779,460 £741,265 £164,980    

£ Flats £47,700 £88,000 £0    

£ Bungalows £0 £0 £0    

£ Land £0 £0 £0    

TOTAL £827,160 £829,265 £164,980    

Sold 2018/19 Sold YTD

17 3

4 0

0 0

0 0

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:     27th November, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Assistant Director - Community 
Services 

(D)

Title: South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan

Summary and Conclusions:

Members will be aware that this Council fulfils its Community Safety Partnership 
statutory duty by collaborating with South Lakeland District Council and other 
agencies in the South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership. Members and 
Officers attend meetings regularly to receive information and assist in the shaping 
of how Community Safety issues are addressed across the area, The CSP 
produces a brief plan which sets out the priorities which the partnership seeks to 
address. The plan is attached and members are asked to note the contents. 

Recommendation 

To note the South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan.

Report

Members will be aware that this Council fulfils its Community Safety Partnership 
statutory duty by collaborating with South Lakeland District Council and other 
agencies in the South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership. Members and 
Officers attend meetings regularly to receive information and assist in the shaping 
of how Community Safety issues are addressed across the area, The CSP 
produces a brief plan which sets out the priorities which the partnership seeks to 
address. The plan is attached at Appendix 1 and Members are asked to note the 
contents

(i) Legal Implications

The plan assists in the Council’s statutory duty regarding Community Safety 
Partnership work.

(ii) Financial Implications

No Implications

(iii) Health and Safety Implications

No Implications

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



(iv) Equality and Diversity

No Implications

(v) Health and Well-being Implications

No Implications

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Assistant Director - Community Services

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



Priority - Domestic abuse
Aims:  Protect our communities against domestic abuse
through education and support.

Key deliverables:

•     Increase the reporting of domestic abuse.
•     Support victims through joined up partner                        

working.
•     Encourage behaviour change of 

perpetrators through effective schemes.
•     Work with young males who have 

witnessed domestic abuse to stop 
them becoming offenders.  

Priority - Substance abuse
and drug supply
Aims:  Raise awareness amongst young people and reduce
the number of bad decisions made and by improving their
decision making.

Key deliverables: 

• ATiC project – Performances and workshops in 
10 schools in South Cumbria.

• Fewer young people being involved with drug supply.
• Support retailers and education in relation to underage

drinking and proxy sales.

Priority - Anti-social
behaviour

Aims:  To work with the local focus hubs to reduce anti-social
behaviour where it occurs.

Key deliverables:

•     Target vulnerable locations through multi agency
intervention.

• Increase public confidence in the ability of partners to
deal with crime and anti-social behaviour.

• Support targeted diversionary activities to reduce the
likelihood of young people being involved in ASB.

Priority - Protecting vulnerable
people
Aims:  To help safeguard people against being exploited
and abused and support those with mental health problems.
Key deliverables:

• Identify and support vulnerable victims at risk of
crime or exploitation.

• Improve the confidence of victims to report
hate crime and provide support for
victims.

• We will make victims of crime aware
and encourage them to consider
using free-to-use restorative justice
services.

South Cumbria is one of the safest places in the country.  How do we make it even safer?
It is very clear that prevention is vital.

•     We will never cure the drug problems just by tackling supply, we also need to reduce demand by
helping people give up drugs.

•     Our third sector partners, working with people with drink problems whilst they are in hospital and
supporting them when they come out, are reducing the demand on the blue light services 

and A&E, and this will literally save lives.
•     Diversionary activities for young people reduces anti-social behaviour.

•     Locking our sheds and securing our doors and windows reduces burglary.
Agencies working together can achieve far more than by working in isolation.  We now have Local Tactical 

Hubs, in Kendal and Barrow. A wide range of agencies meet to discuss those difficult problems that 
no one agency can solve on its own.  Early results from this are very promising. 
Working with organisations to support victims is a key aim of the partnership

The South Community Safety Partnership working together and with your
help, will make South Cumbria feel, and be, even safer.

Cllr Brendan Sweeney, 
Chair, South Cumbria CSP

Partnership Plan
Keeping Cumbria a safe place to live, work and visit

Priority - Violent crime
Aims: To reduce the number of people affected by alcohol
related crime.

Key deliverables: 
• Work with licencees and partners to reduce alcohol

related violence
• Support victims of violence through partnership working
• Work with partners to provide education of alcohol

misuse

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Keep yourself and others safe:
• Protect yourself from Cyber-crime – top three tips:

1. Choose, use and protect your passwords carefully

2. Protect mobile devices with a pin and look after them
in public places

3. Always download software, operating systems and 
app updates as these frequently contain security 
improvements

For more information see www.getsafeonline.org

• Report any hate crime – call 101, tell an officer or go
online.

For more information see
www.cumbria.police.uk/report-it/hate-crime-reporting

• Know the signs of domestic abuse and that help
is available – call crime stoppers anytime to
anonymously report abuse on 0800 555 111. 

For more information about domestic abuse see
www.crimestoppers-uk.org/ www.cumbria.police.uk

If you are in an abusive relationship and would like
support or advice contact the following numbers:

- National Domestic Violence Helpline 24 hours a day, 
seven days a week, on 0808 2000 247

- Men’s Advice Line is available Monday to Friday 
9am-5pm, on 0808 801 0327.

• Anti-social behaviour covers a wide range of
unacceptable activity that causes harm to an individual,
to their community or to their environment. If you are
experiencing problems with anti-social behaviour, or
have any concerns about it, or other community safety
issues, you should call the non-emergency number, 101.
For noise issues contact your local council. In an
emergency always call 999.

• Follow your local council, the police or Cumbria
Community Messaging to stay up-to-date with local
issues and advice.

• If you have been a victim of crime there are
organisations who offer free and confidential services to
help you move forward. See the website:
www.cumbriatogether.com for information on local
support available. You can also contact Victim Support
free of charge on 
0808 1689 111.

Barrow - Case Study:
Egerton Court in Barrow (supported by South Cumbria CSP) is an
example of what can be achieved through partnership working. This
location was well known for criminality and anti-social behaviour but
work by the police also identified that many of the residents were
vulnerable people.  

In early 2019 a multi-agency welfare hub opened in Egerton Court and
now residents can easily access support services and advice, making
the area a better place to live for all.  Through targeted multi-agency
work the number of incidents has steadily reduced.

The members of the partnership are a mixture of
statutory organisations such as local councils, Cumbria
Police, Fire and Probation service and relevant voluntary
and charity groups.

South Lakeland - Case Study:
The CSP aims to improve the lives of children and young people
through innovative projects. In 2018 the CSP funded a Theatre in
Education project with the aim to bring high quality, immersive
theatre and workshops to local schools on community safety issues
affecting Cumbrian young people.

The resulting production of ‘Ruby’ , and associated workshop, was
taken to nine schools, with 1,520 audience members in 2018. In
addition, two schools were amongst 135 audience members who
attended a special performance at the Brewery Arts Centre.

Five schools and 290 pupils also experienced the performance and
Q&A via a live stream. 

This fast-paced production was based on real life stories and focused
on the pressures facing young people. Its aim was to encourage
young people to share their experiences with each other to develop
resilience. 

Feedback was extremely positive:  “Really enjoyable to watch while
being moving and insightful. It will provide some great opportunities
for discussion”  said a class teacher. 
“The play was the most eye-opening, realistic story I have heard. This
has showed me how to help my friends and myself” said a pupil. 

The 2019 round of performances will centre around drug use and
County Lines activity and how young people can stay safe and make
the right choices.

For further information please email: 
partnerships@southlakeland.gov.uk

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

27th November, 2019

(D/R) AGENDA ITEM NO. 7

RECOMMENDATIONS

OF THE

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

30th October, 2019

*Subject to the protocol agreed by Council

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



The recommendations of the meeting of the Housing Management Forum held on 
30th October, 2019 are attached.

COPIES OF THE DETAILED REPORTS ON THESE ITEMS HAVE BEEN 
CIRCULATED PREVIOUSLY TO ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.

The Council has agreed that the following protocol should operate:-

- The Executive Committee shall automatically agree any such 
recommendation or refer it back for further consideration.

- If on re-submission the Executive Committee is still unwilling to approve the 
recommendation, it is automatically referred to full Council for decision.

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:       30th October, 2019

Reporting Officer:   Janice Sharp, Assistant Director 
- Housing

(D)

(i)

Title:      Future Use of Eamont Close Community Centre and   
Guest Bedroom

Summary and Conclusion:

The purpose of the report was to consider the future use of Eamont Close 
Community Centre and guest bedroom.

Recommendation:

1) To note the information on the consultation with Residents and Members;

2) To agree that the Assistant Director - Housing, in consultation with the Director 
of Resources, had appointed Chris Bugler (Chartered Architect) to carry out an 
initial feasibility design of the proposed conversion, followed by a detailed 
design and cost evaluation; the appointment was for the duration of the project; 
and

3) To agree that once a detailed design and cost evaluation had been agreed, 
Officers would procure a suitable qualified Contact to undertake the work.

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:      30th October, 2019

Reporting Officer:   Janice Sharp, Assistant Director 
- Housing

(R)

(ii)

Title:     Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025

Summary and Conclusion:

The purpose of the report was to seek Members’ approval to publish and 
implement the Housing Department’s 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy.

Recommendation:

1) To agree the content of the Housing Department’s 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Strategy;

2) To agree to prioritise future investments to housing related assets  based on 
the results of the sustainability scoring matrix; and

3) To agree that Officers would produce a new five-year Asset Management 
Investment Plan for each of the Council’s five housing management areas for 
Members’ consideration at their meeting to be held on 16th January, 2020.

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



  Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(R)

Title: The Council Plan 2020-2024

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council Plan has been updated with Officer and Member input to ensure 
we are focusing on the right priorities and outcomes throughout the given 
period to improve the Borough as a whole.

Recommendations: 

To recommend the Council to endorse the updated Council Plan for the 
period 2020-2024.

Report

Summary 

The Council Plan has been revised to take into account updates to the 
Council’s priorities to meet the future challenges and opportunities for the 
Borough. The Council Plan 2020-2024 (Appendix 1) has been developed 
with input from both Members and Officers, to ensure the Council as a whole 
understands and strives to achieve our priority outcomes. 

Introduction

The Council Plan is a key strategic document which sets the priorities for the 
Borough and will guide decision making, including how public money is spent 
during the period 2020-2024. It sits alongside the MTFS and also reflects the 
plans and strategies of other organisations that we will work with. 

The Council Plan sets our strategic direction for the next four years. It is 
underpinned by a performance management framework which will ensure that 
we target our resources in the right areas to deliver our priorities. 

Vision and Priorities

The vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.

We will achieve the vision through our three Council Plan priorities;

 Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



 Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

 Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents.

Values and Behaviours:  

We aim to put our residents at the heart of all we do. The values that will drive 
our behaviours are:

 To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our 
customers and colleagues.

 To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open 
and confident to challenge and be challenged.

 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.
 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.
 Our team will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals.

Each priority is as follows:

Priority 1: People – Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive 
lives.
Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. 
We will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and 
active lifestyles, and have opportunities to improve their well-being by building 
strong communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to 
design activities that meet their needs.

Priority 2: Place – Creating a great place to live. 
Barrow Borough is a great place where people come to live, work and have 
fun. There is an abundance of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an 
opportunity to offer people more. We will work with our communities so that 
people can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can 
be happy and reach their full potential. We want to build on existing strengths 
and encourage more people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by 
making them more vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and 
memorable experience. We want to protect our natural environment. 

Priority 3: Prosperity – Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a 
long term economic future for all our community. 
Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is 
a source of local pride and tradition. Our world class manufacturing expertise 
is recognised worldwide, however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to 
diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting 
other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. 
In particular we need to secure continued investment in the town and ensure 
our residents have the skills and services to allow them to benefit from the 
growing economy. We will deliver our ambitions through effective joint working 
with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, 
proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the town and by 
securing additional public and private investment.  

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



Next Steps

Members are asked to recommend that Council endorse the updated Council 
Plan; Council meets on the 21st January 2020.

The draft Plan (Appendix 1) is yet to be finalised in terms of format and final 
text updates; the priorities and objectives are not expected to change but the 
actions may be rephrased or updated.

The final copy of the Council Plan 2020-2024 will be circulated ahead of the 
Council meeting. A designed version will go to Full Council for publication 
along with a ‘Plan on a page’ with success measures aligned. 

Progress and achievement of the Council’s objectives will be monitored 
through the Performance Management Framework and reported to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The Council’s finances will be realigned and reprioritised to support delivery of 
the Council Plan. 

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Borough Council

Council Plan 2020-2024

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Foreword

TBC from the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council 

Introduction

The Council is committed to creating better lives for the people of Barrow Borough.

The Council Plan is the strategic document that will guide decision making and how we spend public money for the period 2020 – 2024.

It builds on our successes in balancing the Council’s budget to account for the reduction in spending power, whilst still delivering the projects that will regenerate the Borough. 

We will work together to set clear priorities and actions around increasing prosperity through a growing and diverse economy, improving the environment by providing better homes and preserving 
the Boroughs natural beauty, and supporting all people in our Borough; we will make Barrow a great place to live, work and visit.

Our Vision and Values

Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit. 

We will achieve this by putting residents at the heart of all we do. This is underpinned by the following values and behaviours. 

 To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our customers and colleagues.
 To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open and confident to challenge and be challenged.
 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.
 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.
 Our team will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals.

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



People

Priority 1: People – Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive lives.

Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. We will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and active lifestyles, and have opportunities to 
improve their well-being by building strong communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to design activities that meet their needs.

Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
More of our residents are living well for longer.  Work with health and care system to develop prevention and 

early intervention plans to reduce health inequalities.
 Use our place leadership role to drive health and well-being 

forums and partnerships to ensure they get the best results 
for our residents.

 Work with partners to tackle specific health issues in the 
Borough:
 Mental illness
 Substance misuse
 Diet and exercise

LEAD OFFICER: Policy and Engagement Officer
. 

More of our residents are making healthy lifestyle choices.  Encourage greater use of leisure facilities including parks, 
woodlands, beaches and open spaces including participation 
in, park run/ Junior Park run/ active Barrow mums. Especially 
for our least active residents.

 Work with Life Leisure to do more to support our 
communities to make healthier choices

 Promote local walks/ activities e.g. walk for health/ cycle 
events through social media.

 Work with Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust to 
deliver Health Priorities. 

 Provide a range of facilities and opportunities to encourage 
participation in sport.

 Promote healthier lifestyles for our own employees

LEAD OFFICER: Assistant Director – Community Services

Our communities are strong, confident and actively 
engaged in shaping their future.

 Celebrate the achievements and successes of our 
communities through publically raising awareness of the 
great things they do.

 Provide support for Voluntary Community Services by 
involving, engaging and empowering them to be at the heart 
of our neighbourhoods.

LEAD OFFICER: Policy and Engagement Officer
 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
People will feel safe where they live  Actively lead the South Cumbria Community Safety 

Partnership and ensure actions to improve safety in barrow 
are delivered.

 Work with partners to protect our most vulnerable residents 
by;
 Tackling homelessness
 Delivering disabled Facilities Grants
 Being Corporate parents
 Supporting people with special educational needs and 

disabilities.
 Contributing to the Cumbria Safeguarding Adults Board.

 Work closely with voluntary community organisations to 
understand key opportunities and challenges within our 
communities and the interventions that may help to 
overcome these.

 Seek to secure new investment that can support the 
empowerment of our communities, in particular those within 
the most deprived parts of the Borough.

 Build community resilience through increasing participation 
in local activities and decision making and enable residents 
to influence and contribute to service delivery.

LEAD OFFICER: Policy and Engagement Officer

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Place 

Priority 2: Place – Creating a great place to live 

Barrow Borough is a great place where people come to live, work and have fun. There is an abundance of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an opportunity to offer people more. We will 
work with our communities so that people can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can be happy and reach their full potential. We want to build on existing strengths and 
encourage more people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by making them more vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and memorable experience. We want to protect our 
natural environment. 

Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
Our Borough has a diverse housing offer, where everyone 
can expect a decent home they can afford to live in. 

 Deliver the Local Plan for developing housing sites 
throughout the Borough. 

 Work collectively with Homes England to deliver Marina 
Village. 

 Prepare evidence base and a Housing Strategy to determine 
priorities and actions needed to improve housing offer. 

 Reduce the number of empty properties.
 Develop a Housing Renewal Policy which focuses on 

delivering improvements which improve the quality of life for 
residents.

 Create an Empty Homes Strategy.
 Encourage the development of supported special needs 

housing in the Borough. 
 Promote through Cumbria Choice Based Letting. 
 Ensure that all Local Authority dwellings continue to meet the 

Decent Homes Standard.
 Explore opportunities to build new social housing with 

partner organisations. 
 Review options for increasing social housing within the 

Borough.
 Work with key partners to deliver transformative 

development at Marina Village, part of a comprehensive 
redevelopment of Barrow’s historic waterfront.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place
 

Our neighbourhoods are clean, welcoming and attractive.   Work with residents to foster positive attitudes to maintaining 
cleanliness.

 Work with our contractors to deliver effective street cleaning, 
and grounds maintenance services. 

 Be tough on those who blight our neighbourhoods with fly 
tipping, litter and dog fouling through a robust approach to 
enforcement.

 Raise awareness through targeted marketing companies.
 Work closely with representatives from the Boroughs towns 

and villages to ensure they feel engaged and empowered.

LEAD OFFICER: Assistant Director – Community Services

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
Our environment is enhanced, protected and celebrated.  Climate emergency action plan.

 Enhanced greener spaces; public parks, beaches etc. 
 Reduce our use of natural reserves through reduction, 

recycling, reuse.
 Work with partners to raise awareness of natural assets and 

celebrate them. 

LEAD OFFICER: Public Protection Manager

A thriving leisure, culture and sport offer.  Work alongside the BID team to continue improving and 
promoting leisure facilities, cultural offers and retail.

 Through effective communications and joint working with 
Cumbria Tourism and Cumbria LEP to enhance the profile 
and perception of Barrow as a place to visit, live and work in.

 Create a positive image of the Borough to increase tourism
 Culture Compact – with SLDC and Lancaster.
 Improve the amenity of the town, promoting natural 

beauty.
 Maintain the good quality leisure offer provided by the 

Forum, Dock Museum and Barrow Park.
 Develop tourism within the Council by providing greater 

access to information.  Strengthen links to Cumbria 
tourism to present an “off the shelf scripted offer”.

 Create a thriving evening economy to attract residents 
and visitors to the town centres of Barrow and Dalton.

 Embrace Barra culture to promote cultural events at 
venues throughout the Borough.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Public and Place

Vibrant town centres where people want to visit.  Deliver key improvements to the town centres for the benefit 
for residents, workers and tourists/ visitors. 

 Transform the experience of Barrow as retail and service 
destination for residents, visitors and businesses by 
facilitating a diversity of uses; enhance the public realm and 
increase accessibility.

 Secure and deliver significant new investment for the town 
centre; capitalising on opportunities created by Future High 
Streets and Town’s Deal funding streams.

 Improvement to infrastructure designed to achieve the safe 
and convenient movement of vehicles and pedestrians to 
and within the town centre.  

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Public and Place

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Prosperity

Priority 3 – Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a long term economic future for all our community. 

Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is a source of local pride and tradition. Our world class manufacturing expertise is recognised worldwide, however to 
enable inclusive growth we will seek to diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. In particular 
we have the opportunity to secure continued investment in the town and ensure our residents have the skills and services to allow them benefit from the growing economy.  We will deliver our 
ambitions through effective joint working with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the town and by 
securing additional public and private investment.  

Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
The Borough will have a strategic role within Cumbria and 
as part of the Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region.

 Engage with districts, county and Cumbria Local Enterprise 
Partnership (Cumbria LEP) members to realise opportunities 
surrounding the Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region 
and prospective growth deal.

 Enhance the reputation role of Barrow as a key sub-regional 
centre for the south of Cumbria.

 Actively pursue opportunities to promote the Borough 
throughout the region, Northern Powerhouse and beyond.  

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place

The Borough will have a strong and diverse economy.  Deliver the employment sites identified through the Local 
Plan. 

 Undertake a full review of assets, capital and resources to 
ensure that they are used to meet strategic objectives.

 Bring forward a new Supplementary Planning Policy to 
support the Local Plan implementation and to maximise the 
opportunities it can present.

 Develop a robust pipeline of schemes for which funding can 
be sought in an opportunistic and timely manner.

 Create conditions for entrepreneurs and businesses to start 
up and grow through – Phoenix Business Centre and 
Harding Rise. 

 Actively seek to encourage inward investment and growth in 
renewable energy sector, visitor economy, creative and 
cultural industries.

 Work with major businesses and key partners to improve 
commercial awareness and take advantage of new 
opportunities. 

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
Barrow is a well-connected Borough with improved road, 
port, rail and digital infrastructure.

 Engage proactively with Cumbria LEP, Cumbria County 
Council, Highways England and Transport for the North to 
secure investment in the A590 and A595.

 Work with partners to develop Barrow Port as a gateway for 
bulk material handling, nuclear waste transportation, energy 
services and tourism.

 Engage proactively with Cumbria LEP, Cumbria County 
Council, Network Rail and Transport for the North to secure 
improved connectivity, journey times and services for rail 
journeys to and from Barrow.

 Continue to campaign to increase access to superfast 
broadband.

 Work with Cumbria County Council and Highways England 
to improve signage from the A590 to the town centre.

 Work with Cumbria County Council to improve traffic flow 
and parking in the town centre, making it more accessible 
and attractive to residents, visitors and businesses.

 Promote more sustainable public transport including electric 
buses, walking and cycling alongside a comprehensive 
approach to wayfinding, to promote and improve active 
travel.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place
 

Our residents have the skills, aspirations and opportunities 
to fulfil their potential.

 Identify current skill gaps
 Work with education providers and training institutions to 

ensure targeted programme to address skill gaps
 Work across sectors to promote a comprehensive 

apprenticeship programme, including Barrow Borough 
Council.

 Work across sectors to deliver a joined up marketing and 
recruitment campaign.

 Promote opportunities for social enterprise.
 Adopt the principles of community wellbeing to ensure all out 

communities benefit. 

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Plan Delivery 

Progress and achievement of the outcomes will be monitored through the Performance Management Framework.

Monitoring reports will be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

A summarised report will be published on the Council’s website.

Management Team will implement any remedial action where objectives are not on track; Overview and Scrutiny Committee may also request remedial action through their discussions on progress 
and presentation of outcomes/ outputs.  Where necessary matters may be escalated to the Executive Committee where the objective may need to be reconsidered and associated actions varied. 
Further breakdown of these outcomes and desired actions will be set within each department’s Service Plans. 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Assistant

(D)

Title: Risk Register and Policy

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council Risk Register has been updated by Management Team and the 
Policy has been updated to reflect changes to the Register.

Recommendations: 

To accept the changes to the Risk Register and Policy.

Report

Management Team reviewed the Council’s Risk Register at a Special meeting 
on 4th September and identified new risks and made changes to the 
presentation format. 

The new Risk Register, which contains Corporate and Operational risks is 
attached as Appendix 1.

The Council’s Risk Policy has also been updated to reflect the changes 
(attached at Appendix 2).

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

1

Corporate Risk Register

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

1/20/1

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation.

5 5 25

 Regulatory changes
 Changes to service delivery
 Service performance implications
 Resource requirements

Awareness
 Monitoring Officer will receive notification.
 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of 

Service.
 Membership of professional and local government bodies 

aids horizon scanning.
Actions
 Management Team will determine actions to be taken.
 We will create detailed project plans to manage 

implementation of changes.
 We will adopt a management of change approach to mitigate 

against significant impact to the Council and its staff
 Service Manager will be responsible for implementing 

changes.
 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed.

4 5 20 Monitoring Officer

2/20/1
Poor internal and 
external  
communications.

4 4 16

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support 
for change.

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking.

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council.

Awareness
 Communication strategy on priorities
 Internal & external regular publications
 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive 

Officer
 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring and 

reporting procedure
Actions
 Regular staff and management meetings
 Key stakeholder networks for consultation
 Co-ordinated press releases
 Access external communication

3 3 9 Head of Paid Service

3/20/1

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, 
or performance 
targets. 

4 4 16

 Greater costs than budgeted for. Awareness
 Performance Management Framework
 Regular reporting to Management team
Actions
 Heightened analysis of budgets and services
 Service transformation
 Business/service planning
 Pursue action to increase income streams
 Budget and performance monitoring

3 3 9 Director of 
Resources

4/20/1 Poor management 
of projects. 4 5 20

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve 
project aims. 

Awareness 
 Managing Contract performance.
 Contract Checklist 
 Service plans
Actions
 Project Management methodology
 Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations
 Budgetary control

3 2 6 Director of People 
and Place

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

2

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

5/20/1

Ineffective 
workforce planning, 
or imposed 
reductions in 
resources. 

4 5 20

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.  
 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 

resilience.
 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the 

Council to risk of service failure and legal challenge.

Awareness
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures
 Service planning process  
Actions 
 Organisational Development
 Training and development
 Working environment
 Staff surveys/consultation
 Flexible working
 Business continuity plans
 Management training
 Appraisals

2 3 6 Director of 
Resources

6/20/1 Failure to secure 
and manage data. 5 5 25

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in 
disruption to services and breaches of security.  

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such 
as viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to 
services and breaches of security.  

 Financial penalties and reputational risk.

Awareness
 Data breach reporting
 IT security monitoring
 Awareness of cyber security risks
Actions
 Data protection policy and procedure
 Freedom of Information publication scheme
 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal
 Information breach response plan
 Business continuity plans
 IT system security
 Public Services Network compliance
 IT and data online training modules
 GDPR training and policy
 Data Sharing Agreements
 Data owner central register
 Anti-virus software
 Off-site replicate servers
 Tested disaster recovery plan
 Back-ups off site
 Secondary power supply
 IT security policies
 Critical services’ business continuity plans include manual 

operation
 Clear desk strategy

2 3 6 Director TBC

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

3

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

7/20/1 Economic change. 5 5 25

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account 
restraints; reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate 
income.

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council.

Awareness
 Council wide efficiency monitoring and reporting
 Budget monitoring
 Debt management policy
Actions 
 Section 151/Chief Finance Officer
 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders
 Appropriately trained staff
 Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget Strategy
 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 

available resources
 Review of fees and charges
 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves
 Strong financial management system
 Capital finance risk management
 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems
 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including 

appeals) and Council Tax
 Spending Review technical assessment

4 4 16 Section 151 Officer

8/20/1
Natural disaster; 
malicious or 
accidental incident.

5 4 20

 Affects support required by citizens or disrupts existing 
Council services.

Awareness
 Information provided by external organisations
 Communications Strategy
Actions
 Emergency plan 
 Emergency planning exercises
 Business continuity plans
 Arrangements with partner organisations
Service arrangements with major contractors

4 4 16 Head of Paid Service

9/20/1 Changes in political 
priorities. 5 4 20

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional 
resource to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined 
by consultation.

Actions
 Financial and workforce planning
 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the 

Executive Committee
 Clear corporate planning and regular performance 

monitoring
 Effective service planning
 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes
 Membership of the Local Government Association

5 3 15 Head of Paid Service 

10/20/1
Major Health and 
Safety incident at 
the Council. 

4 4 16

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and 
possible prosecution.

Awareness
 Corporate wide H&S training
Actions
 Health & Safety (H&S) Board
 H&S Management Group
 H&S procedures – addressed at every service area
 H&S audits /peer review
 Specialist H&S advisor
 Insurance

4 3 12 Head of Paid Service

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

4

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

11/20/1

Brexit
Impact of the UK 
exiting the EU with 
or without a 
Withdrawal 
Agreement

4 4 16

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and 
possible prosecution.

 Impact on the Council of new legislative framework in a 
range of areas.

 Potential civil disruption / product shortages

 The Council has a registered Brexit Lead
 The Council is part of the Cumbria Local Authorities Brexit 

Forum and the Regional Network
 The Council is part of the Cumbria Local Resilience Forum
 Funding has been made available from Central Government 

which is in reserve for any short term activity that may be 
required.

 There is a continued review of the potential implications to 
the Council as the progress towards leaving the EU is 
ongoing.

4 3 12 Assistant Director – 
Community Services

12/20/1
Failure to deliver 
the objectives of the 
Council plan

5 3 15

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may 
be missed.

 The Council Plan will be presented to the Executive 
Committee in November.

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s 
objectives

5 2 10 Chief Executive

 




P
age 72

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

5

Operational Risk Register

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Risk owner

1/20/1

Service provision 
and performance 
affected by 
organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness.

4 5 20

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. Awareness
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures
 Organisational culture
 Management training
Actions 
 Working environment
 Staff surveys/consultation
 Flexible working
 Business continuity plans
 Appraisals and professional training
 Performance monitoring and management
 Clear absence management scheme
 Workforce strategy

3 4 1
2 Section 151 Officer

2/20/1

Failure of contractor 
or partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets.

4 5 20

 Additional costs or failed objectives. Awareness
 Project management
Actions 
 Procurement processes – including financial 

aspects/contract standing orders/equality standards
 Contract process – creation of robust contracts
 Accountability and risk ownership documented
 Service Level Agreements
 Contract monitoring
 Trained/skilled staff
 Established governance arrangements

4 3 1
2

Director of 
Resources

3/20/1

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, 
malpractice or error, 
by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss. 

5 3 12

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs 
and penalties.

Awareness
 Appropriate culture and risk awareness
Actions
 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy
 Whistleblowing policy
 National Anti-Fraud Network
 National Fraud Initiative
 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders
 Codes of conduct
 Appropriately trained staff
 Segregation of duties
 Supported financial management system
 Budget monitoring regime
 Internal Audit review of systems and controls
 Insurance
 Annual Governance Statement

3 1 3 Director of 
Resources

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

6

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherit Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Risk owner

4/20/1
Significant 
infrastructure 
projects aren’t 
properly supported.

5 4 20

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner.
 Additional project cost.
 Loss of reputation.

Awareness
 Monitoring at IT Users Board
 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones.
Actions
 Regular reviews by the Major Projects Board and the Major 

Projects Advisory Board.
 Review resource and skill requirements.
 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities.
 Address skill shortages.

5 2 1
0

Director of People 
and Place.

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



Page 1

Risk Management Policy

Version Control:

Document Name: Risk Management Policy

Version:  Version 4

Responsible Officer: Corporate Support Assistant

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved:

Review Date: September 2022

Risk Management Policy

Page 75

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Page 2

Introduction and purpose

This policy defines Barrow Borough Council’s approach to risk management. 

Barrow Borough Council has adopted a balanced approach to risk management. The 
Council recognise that good risk management will support and improve the decision 
making process, increasing the likelihood of objectives being achieved and enabling 
the Council to quickly respond to new threats and opportunities. 

Risk management is about understanding the opportunities and risks that could help 
or prevent us in trying to deliver our intended outcome.

Understanding and managing our threats or risks comes down to four questions:
 What’s the worst that could happen to us?
 What’s the likelihood of it happening?
 What would be the impact if it did?
 What can we do about it (i.e. how can we prevent it from happening or what 

can we put in place to manage it if it should?

Robust risk management will also help us to explore and take up opportunities as 
they are identified. 

Good risk management does not mean that we are to take greater risks, nor that we 
avoid taking risks. Rather, strong risk management gives us a better understanding 
of the risks and opportunities that we face and how we can best manage them.

The real value of strong risk management lies in the benefits it will deliver. These 
benefits will be varied in their nature and extent, some might be more significant than 
others, but they will all be important to the Council’s reputation and ability to deliver 
an improved public service.

Some of the benefits we can expect to realise include:
 Supporting and improving the decision making process;
 Improved public confidence in our ability to deliver services (our reputation);
 Early warning of problems;
 Prioritisation of resources;
 Improved business planning by focusing on the outcome not the process.

Barrow Borough Council’s approach 

The Council’s approach to risk management is to support the main requirement of 
good corporate governance:

Strong Leadership:
 Elected Members and Senior Managers will support and promote strong risk 

management throughout the Council.

The Elected Members:

Page 76

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Page 3

 The Executive Committee approve the Risk Management Policy Statement 
and subsequent revisions. They consider the Risk Management implications 
when making decisions. Also they agree to the Council’s appropriate 
responses to its highest risks.

 The Leader of the Council will be responsible for the overview of the Council’s 
Risk Management activities. 

 Audit Committee review the Council’s Risk Register. 

Senior Managers:
 Ensure that there is a robust framework in place to identify, monitor and 

manage the Council’s operational risks and opportunities. Also make sure that 
there is a management and quarterly review of the corporate risk register, 
along with demonstrating a commitment to the embedding of risk 
management across the Council. 

Consistent: 
 There will be a robust structure and a consistent approach to risk 

management throughout the Council. We will use a risk management 
framework to equip our staff so they can manage risks appropriately. 

Open and Transparent:
 Our approach to managing risks will be open and clear. The Council will 

promote a learning culture and blame will not be placed if decisions that have 
been made turn out to be wrong. Staff and Members have access to 
information on our current risks and opportunities and how we are managing 
them. Corporate and operational risks will be recorded in the Council’s Risk 
Register, which is published on the Barrow Borough Council’s website.

Accountable:
 There will be clear accountability for our risks across the organisation. Our 

risks will be open to regular Audit Committee inspection and also monitored 
by external agencies.

 Appropriate risk-taking and innovation will be encouraged and promoted 
through a ‘no blame’ culture. 

The approach to effective risk management will be based on identifying the risk, 
assessing the risk and managing the risk.

Identifying the risk:
 The manager will use their experiences of their work area to identify threats.

Assessing the risk:
 Management Board will assess the risk using a standard risk matrix.

Page 77

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Page 4

Impact/ 
Likelihood

1: 
Insignificant

2: 
Minor

3: 
Moderate

4: 
Significant

5: 
Major

1: Almost 
never
2: 
Unlikely
3: 
Uncertain
4: Likely
5: Almost 
always

Managing the risk:
We will deal with significant risks in one of the four ways described below:

1: Tolerate the risk: As an organisation we should accept that sometimes it is 
appropriate to continue with activities even though we know that it involves taking a 
risk. For a risk where the benefits significantly outweigh the disadvantage, we should 
consider that to be when acceptable when:

 We can put controls in place to mitigate the risk.
 The risk cannot be mitigated cost effectively.

When identifying controls it is important to remember to establish the cost of the 
controls before implementing them. 

2: Treat the risk: This involves reducing the risk to an acceptable level either by 
containment actions or contingent actions. 

Mitigating actions involve actions that can reduce the likelihood of occurrence or 
reduce the impact if it does occur. These are applied before the risk emerges.

Contingent actions involve having an action plan of what we can do to minimise the 
impact if the risk occurs. These are applied after the risk has appeared. 

3:  Terminate the risk: This involves doing things differently and thus removing the 
risk. This option is more applicable to operational risks but is limiting in terms of 
strategic risks. 

4. Transfer the risk to a third party: Examples of this include insurance or paying 
contractors to undertake some of the Council’s functions. This is a good way of 
mitigating financial risk and buying in expertise from other organisations. 

When managing and controlling our risks, our actions should be proportionate – the 
cost and time of our efforts should be in balance with the potential impact of the risk.

Management Board will identify mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood and/ or 
impact. It is also agreed for Management Board to have annual meeting for risk 
management alone.

Page 78

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Page 5

Once a threat has been identified, the likelihood and impact of the threat is assessed 
and a risk score is established. The Council has identified a risk score of 15 above 
which it will take specific action to lower the likelihood and/ or impact to a residual 
risk score that the Council deems to be acceptable. In many cases we will not be 
able to mitigate the risk below a score of 20. 

Where possible a timescale will be agreed for the implementation of the mitigating 
actions and bring the risk score down to an acceptable level. 

An example of how this works is shown below.   

Recording the risk: This is identified in the Council’s risk register, example:
Reference 

Risk 
number/year/version

Inherit 
Risk 

Mitigated 
Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Sc
or

e

Potential 
consequences

Existing 
control/mitigation Im

pa
ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e Risk 
owner

1/20/1

Significant 
changes 
arising from 
Central 
Government 
Legislation.

5 5 25

 Regulatory 
changes

 Changes to 
service 
delivery

 Service 
performance 
implications

 Resource 
requirements

Awareness
 Monitoring Officer will 

receive notification
 Horizon scanning by 

Management Team 
and Heads of Service

 Membership of 
professional and local 
government bodies 
aids horizon scanning

Actions
 Management Team will 

determine actions to be 
taken

 We will create detailed 
project plans to 
manage 
implementation of 
changes

 We will adopt a 
management of change 
approach to mitigate 
against significant 
impact to the Council 
and its staff

 Service Manager will 
be responsible for 
implementing changes

 Financial and workforce 
planning will be 
reviewed

4 5 20 Monitoring 
Officer

The Risk Register is a record of the Council’s risks and is periodically reviewed and 
published to monitor the progress made in reducing the scores of individual risks. It 
also contains the risk owners and mitigating actions they have put in place.

Page 79

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Page 6

Delivery of the annual objectives and significant projects 

The Council will use a similar approach for managing the risks that may affect 
delivery of the Council’s objectives with appropriate managers. If there is a high risk 
of an objective not being achieved Management Board will determine whether an 
action plan is required to mitigate the risk. 

Staff Responsibility 

Lead Officer
 Have a responsibility for the development and implementation of action plans

All Staff
 Be aware of the risks and control mechanisms within their area of work
 Report any new risks to their Line Manager

Corporate Support Manager
 Develop and maintain the Risk Register
 Monitor the implementation of action plans 
 Prepare reports for senior managers and Members
 Arrange training in risk management for Councillors and Officers.

Training
 The Council provide appropriate risk management training for staff involved in 

risk management and elected members as required.

Risk Policy Publication
 The Corporate Support Assistant will ensure that the latest version of the Risk 

Management Policy is published.

Page 80

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



  Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:    27th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title:      Progress on Council Performance Indicators

Summary and Conclusions: 

The report presents progress on the Council’s performance indicators for 
Quarter 2.

Recommendations: 

To note the report and continue to receive the performance indicator report on 
a quarterly basis. 

Report

Council approved a revised Performance Management Framework and 
Indictors in December 2018. 

A review of the indicators has been undertaken and it was agreed that along 
with the current service data, the relative information for the targets would be 
provided.

Service Performance Indicators:

The service performance indicator outputs for quarters 1-2 are presented in 
Appendix 1.

Where there has been significant variation in the outputs compared to 
Quarters 1-2 the reasons for the variation is detailed below.

1. The number of food safety standard inspections is below target; this is 
attributable to staff levels which is being addressed by an on-going staff 
recruitment exercise. The Public Protection team have focussed on 
inspecting the higher risk businesses during this period and 89% of these 
inspections have been completed. The Public Protection Manager also 
structures the inspections from high to low risk; this is detailed in the 
report. 

2. Forum attendance figures are above the target: The forum’s          
programme continues to grow and develop, attracting some of the largest 
touring shows and comedians in the country. In addition, the forum now 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



report the Building users 91,245 and the total income £129,000. This 
Includes additional information that was requested by the Executive 
Committee at their meeting in September.

3. The ‘Operational/ Contractor’ performance indicators are marginally below 
the target set but have improved significantly since Quarter 1. This is 
attributable to improvements in data reporting and a targeted approach by 
the Streetcare Team and the waste contractor.

4. This is the first quarter reporting on the number of starters and leavers at 
Life Leisure; therefore it will take the full reporting year to start seeing 
some frequency in the results.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 82

Agenda Item 11



 

 1 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale  Where  Officer        

Responsible  

Target Q1 & 2 

Staff under-

taking profes-

sional training  

The Council Plan identifies the to 

continue to develop staff. 

Council Plan 

2017-2020,  

Priority 1, 

LE6. 

Executive    

Director  

Number agreed at 

budget 

19 

Planning         

decisions  

Statutory requirement: The Gov-

ernment has set a two year roll-

ing target for the   percentage of 

decision determined within the 

timescale. 

- Development        

Services   

Manager 

(Planning) 

National Annual     

Target:      

Major 60%  

Other 70% 

Majors : 77.8% 

Others : 80.8% 

Forum                

attendance 

Monitor attendance at perfor-

mances and events to inform the 

future cultural offer. 

Council Plan 

2017-2020,  

Priority 2, 

TC1. 

Forum       

Manager 

2018/19—The at-

tendance was 23183. 

The attendance =24,161.  

Building users   = 91,245  

Total income     =£129,000.  

% of Play-

ground         

maintenance    

inspections   

completed  

The Council is committed to en-
courage use of safe leisure facili-
ties through. 

Weekly inspections (Contractor), 
Quarterly (GMCM), Annual 
(RoSPA Inspector) (Aug 18) 

Council Plan 

2017-2020,  

Priority 3, 

HI1. 

Grounds 

Maintenance 

Contracts   

Manager 

100% 100% 

Council Business  

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 

 2 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale  Where  Officer        

Responsible  

Target Q1 & 2 

Food safety 

standard 

Statutory requirement: To provide 

the public with food safety standard 

information for catering businesses 

within the Borough. 

 

- Public         

Protection 

Manager 

An annual target 
of 348 was 
agreed in 
2018/19. 

The target for 
Q2 is 127. 

Inspections are carried out using a risk based ap-
proach. Our aims are to achieve a 100% inspection 
rate of all high risk premises (A & B Risk) each 
month and 100% inspection rate of all premises by 
31

st
 March 2020. E risk premises are subject to an 

Alternative Enforcement Strategy (AES) which al-
lows for a combination of either desktop and on-site 
audits. Variance in the total numbers are due to 
premises closing or moving from one band to anoth-
er and which therefore may require an additional in-
spection. 

Number of Food Premises Inspected. 

 

Risk Risk Rating Target Q.2 Achieved Q.2 Target 19-20 Achieved 19-20 

High A 1 1 4 2 

  B 16 14 30 22 

C 39 38 66 64 

D 43 35 153 61 

Low E 28 8 106 15 

Council Business  

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 

 3 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Where  Officer Responsible  Target Q1 & 2 Rationale 

Fly tips collected within 

one working day of   

being reported. 

Refuse, Recycling and 

Street Cleansing    

Contract 2017-2024, 

Schedule 12,           

Performance Targets.  

Streetcare Manager 100% 74% Fly-tipping has a      

detrimental effect on 

the amenity of the   

Borough and removal 

within 1 working day is          

stipulated in the       

contract. 

Containers delivered 

within 7 working days. 

Refuse, Recycling and 

Street Cleansing    

Contract 2017-2024, 

Schedule 12,            

Performance Targets.  

Streetcare Manager 100% 93% Providing waste            

containers to residents 

in a timely manner is          

critical to managing 

waste and cleansing 

and is stipulated in  the       

contract. 

Missed containers from 

households on the    

assisted list during 

scheduled collections. 

Refuse, Recycling and 

Street Cleansing     

Contract 2017-2024, 

Schedule 12,            

Performance Targets.  

Streetcare Manager 0% 0.45% This is a critical part of 

the services for         

residents who are     

unable to place their 

waste at the curtilage of 

their property. 

Operational/ Contractor 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 

 4 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale Where  Officer Responsible  Target Q1 & 2 

No of enforcement    

notices served for; fly 

tips, litter and         

abandoned vehicles 

These environmental 

crimes have a          

detrimental effect on 

the amenity of the   

Borough 

Council Plan 2017-

2020,  Priority 2, TCI. 

Streetcare Manager For             

information 

only 

Abandoned Vehicle Fines 2 

Fly-tipping Fines  2 

Littering Fines  4 

Section 34             3 

Membership leavers/     

starters at Leisure   

Centre 

Increasing activity rates 

will have a beneficial 

impact on health       

inequalities 

Council Plan 2017-

2020,  Priority 2, HI1. 

Assistant Director –

Community Services. 

N/A Starters 689 

Leavers 497 

Net increase 192 members 

This is the first reporting period 

for this indicator 

Performance Plan 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 

 5 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale Where  Officer Responsible  Target Q1 & 2 

No of disabled 

facilities grants  

The increase is contributed to the       

introduction of a non-means tested 

grant. This has meant that there are 

very few refusals compared to previous 

years. We provide funding for a DFG 

dedicated Occupational therapist who 

has enabled more recommendations to 

be processed faster.  

Council Plan 2017

-2020,  Priority 4, 

H6. 

Property Services 

Group Manager 

Q1 & 2 

2018/19 =  

88  

Q1 & 2 2019/20 = 65 

% of market 

stalls available 

for new          

businesses. 

To continue to support small business-

es within the town. 

Council Plan 2017

-2020,  Priority 2, 

TC 1. 

Assistant Director –

Community Services. 

For infor-

mation only 

Currently 61stalls are in use out of 

a total 78 which is 22% available 

for new businesses. 

Continue to  

provide short 

stay, long stay 

and contract 

parking spaces. 

Provision of providing appropriate park-

ing is critical to support local business. 

Council Plan 2017

-2020,  Priority 2, 

TC 5. 

Assistant Director –

Community Services. 

For infor-

mation only 

Total Number of Car Parking 
Spaces – 1386 

Total Number of Contract Spaces 
– 301  

(Total Number of Pay and Display 
Spaces – 902) 

Number of “Free after 3” Spaces – 
550 

Number of Disabled only spaces - 
62 

Performance Plan 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:  27th November, 2019

Reporting Officer:   Interim Assistant Director 
(Regeneration and Built 
Environment)

(D)

Title: Barrow Town Deal and update on Town Centre 
Funding Opportunities

Summary and Conclusions: 

Following a Government announcement in September 2019 this report 
provides the Executive Committee with an update on the proposed Town Deal 
for Barrow. In particular it highlights the extent of funding that may be secured 
through the deal and the key next steps required if this is to be realised.

The report also provides an update on the development of the Future High 
Street Fund and Heritage High Street Fund applications for the town.

Recommendations: 

1. To note the proposed next steps in developing town deal proposals 
including the establishment of the Town Deal Board and the development 
of a project plan, including communications plan;

2.  To advise members the proposed geographic extent of the Towns Deal; 
and

3.  To note progress with the development of the Future High Street Fund and 
Heritage Action Zone proposals

Report

On 6th September 2019 the Government announced that Barrow-in-Furness 
had been identified as one of 100 places which will be invited to develop 
proposals for a Town Deal.  This could see up to £25m of public investment 
funding being delivered to Barrow as part of the £3.6bn national fund. 

Guidance for the fund was recently published, with this setting out the 
processes for the preparation development of a deal and the range of 
interventions it may be used for and including:

Page 89

Agenda Item 12



 Urban regeneration, planning and land use including by: increasing 
density in town centres; strengthening local economic assets and local 
cultural assets; site acquisition, remediation, preparation and 
regeneration;

 Skills and enterprise infrastructure: supporting private sector 
investment and ensuring towns have the space to support skills and 
small business development; and

 Connectivity: developing local transport schemes that complement 
regional and national networks, as well as supporting the delivery of 
improved digital connectivity.

As the lead authority there will be a requirement for Barrow Borough Council 
to establish a Town Deal Board including the Local Enterprise Partnerships, 
County Council together with key community and business representatives. 

While further guidance is still awaited it is anticipated that the Town Deal 
Board will advise on the development of a Town Investment Plan wherein 
investment priorities would be defined with the Council acting as accountable 
body. 

Working closely with partners the Council is currently developing effective 
Governance arrangements for the Town Deal and other projects. To ensure 
there is an effective forum to engage elected members it is also proposed to 
establish a new board to ensure the effective engagement of elected 
members.

The Government expect that the deal would be tailored in response to the 
specific issues and opportunities within the town with the intention being that 
the deal would be capable of supporting economic growth.

The deal will be required to operate within a defined geographic area and the 
Government are proposing to use the Office of National Statistic’s defined 
Barrow-in-Furness Built-up Urban Area.  While recognising the Government’s 
intention to establish consistent national parameters for the definition of Town 
Deal area, it is proposed that “Deal” area be enlarged to ensure Barrow’s 
waterfront, the full extent of Barrow Island, local plan allocations and the built 
up parts of Walney are included within scope.

Page 90

Agenda Item 12



Figure 1 Proposed Extent of Town's Deal Area

Supporting the development of the Town Investment Plan would be a 
requirement for significant and proactive, community, business and 
stakeholder engagement.  In support of this process the Council would 
receive £162,000 in capacity funding.

In developing proposals there will be a requirement to meet a number of key 
milestones, including:

 Town Deal Board convened –January 2020
 Town Investment Plan guidance published – early 2020
 Town Investment Plan prepared – Summer 2020
 Town Deals agreed – by March 2021

Recognising the process to be followed key next steps would include 
establishing the Town Deal Board, commencing the scoping of a community, 
business and partner engagement strategy, establishment of a programme for 
the delivery of the town deal and confirmation of the geography we wish to be 
eligible for town deal support.

The Executive Committee will also be aware that Barrow has been also been 
short listed for Future High Street and Heritage Action Zone Funding.  With 
respect to the Future High Street fund members should note that a consultant 
team led by Cushman and Wakefield have been appointed to undertake 
business case development.  Working with the Council and key partners they 
will be required to have a draft business case completed by March 2019 and a 
final by June 2020.

Page 91

Agenda Item 12



Supporting the development of the business case, two rounds of public 
engagement will be required in December 2019 and February 2020.  Officers 
will ensure elected members will be engaged through workshops, briefings 
and the new Major Projects Advisory Board before consideration of the final 
bid proposals at the meeting on 20th May 2020 of the Executive Committee.

Following shortlisting of Duke Street for Heritage Action Zone Funding the 
council is now designing a programme of interventions for delivery. This will 
be used by English Heritage to determine the level of grant (up to £1.9m) 
would be available. The proposed programme will need to be submitted by 
20th December with a funding decision anticipated by January 2020. A report 
seeking the Executive Committee’s endorsement of the programme of 
interventions will be considered at the meeting on 18th December.

(i) Legal Implications

At this stage there are considered to be no legal implications created by the 
report or its recommendations.

(ii) Risk Assessment

A risk assessment of the project would be established at the full application 
stage.

(iii) Financial Implications

The Council will receive £162,000 of grant funding support for the 
development of Town Investment Plan.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Interim Assistant Director Regeneration & Built Environment

Page 92

Agenda Item 12



  Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27th November, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Director of Resources    

(D)

Title: Budget Timetable and Assumptions

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report sets out the 2020-2021 budget timetable key dates, the main 
assumptions that the budget estimates will be based on, and the consultation 
material.

Recommendations: 

To note the budget timetable, assumptions and consultation exercise.

Report

The timetable for the 2020-2021 budget setting process is as follows:

Date Meeting Item
27th November 2019 Executive Committee Budget assumptions
28th November 2019 Overview and Scrutiny Budget assumptions

16th January 2020 Housing Management 
Forum

Housing Revenue Account 
budget

5th February 2020 Executive Committee Budget proposals
27th February 2020 Full Council Budget and Council Tax setting

The assumptions used in setting budget estimates for 2020-2021 are:

Item Assumption
Continuing savings built into the budget 
projectionsBudget strategy
Budget projections revised
No service reductionsServices No demand-led increases assumed
No change in the establishment
Employee natural increment progression 
and National Living Wage
Superannuation rate 19.5%Staff pay

Pay award assumed 2%
Spinal points and scales unchanged

Page 93

Agenda Item 13



Item Assumption
Electricity 8%
Gas 8%
Water 5%Property costs
NNDR based on 2017 revaluation
NNDR multiplier

Grants to external bodies Funded until 2020-2021
Revenues and benefits IT and specialist 
services 3%
Grounds maintenance 2.4%
Waste and street cleansing 4.5%

Contracted services; set in each 
contract against specific indices

Building cleaning new contract
Discretionary income as per service 
delegations
No reduction in recycling tonnageIncome

3% increase in recycling reward rate
Temporary surplus cash reducing by £3m 
each year
Investment income based on bank rate 
forecasts
All PWLB fixed rate, maturity reflected in 
budget estimates
No new borrowing drawn down

Treasury management

Financing based on agreed Capital 
Programme

Pension deficit funding (not 
ongoing superannuation) Triennial valuation at 1st April 2020

Revenue support grant From the settlement
Increased by SBRR multiplier each year
No loss of rateable value
No exceptional growth
No exceptional increase in RV appeals
No reduction in the collection rate
Tariff from the settlement
Section 31 grants continuing
Levy continuing (into Pool)

Retained business rates

Pool membership continues
New homes bonus No further awards due to threshold

No reduction in the collection rate
Base to be estimated on most recent 
informationCouncil tax
Band D increase the higher of 2.99% or £5; 
levels published with the settlement

Council tax support Default scheme continued
Prior year collection fund result Return of any surplus or deficit

All other items not specifically 
mentioned above

Small increases to reflect market price 
changes
Efficiencies will maintain the cost envelope

Page 94

Agenda Item 13



These assumptions are the basis for estimating the budgets for 2020-2021; 
the budget proposals report will identify any significant variances or changes.

Consultation Exercise

The proposals within the current Budget Strategy continue to be implemented 
and these were subject to public consultation during the summer of 2016, 
however, as the underlying assumptions can vary year on year, a budget 
consultation exercise is carried out; this also informs future planning.

The budget assumptions will be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 28th November, 2019.  In addition the consultation material set 
out in Appendix 1 will be published online and available until 12th January 
2020.

(i) Legal Implications

It is a statutory requirement to set the Council’s budgets and the council tax.

Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 
present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the 
time of the meeting an amount of council tax is payable by them and has 
remained unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or council tax 
calculation, or recommendation or decision which might affect the making of 
any such calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting.

In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 
practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies 
to them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It 
should be noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these 
matters.

Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, 
unless any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 
applied to them at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was 
the subject of consideration at the meeting.

(ii) Risk Assessment

There is a risk that the budget assumptions are insufficient; this is mitigated 
as far as possible through the budget setting process and the best possible 
estimates are used, supported by financial reserves.

The financial settlement is expected to be published in draft during December 
and be based on 2019-2020; if necessary assumed figures can be calculated 
to complete the draft budget and final settlement figures provided for the Full 
Council meeting.

Page 95

Agenda Item 13



The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria is required to set their 
budget for 2020-2021 by 28th February each year and there is a risk that their 
precept figure is not confirmed in time for this meeting; progress will be 
closely monitored between the Section 151 Officers.

(iii) Financial Implications

The financial assumptions set out in the body of the report will be the basis for 
the 2020-2021 budget setting.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Director of Resources

Page 96

Agenda Item 13



2020-2021 Budget Consultation 
 
 
Council Plan 
 
The Council has an established Plan setting out the long term priorities 
and objectives that will make a difference to the Borough.  The Council 
Plan focuses on people, prosperity, place and perception. 
 
General Fund Council Services 
 
The Council is responsible for delivering services including housing, 
revenues and benefits, planning and building control, public protection 
and licensing services, refuse collection, street cleansing and waste 
collection services to the public.  In addition the Council chooses to 
deliver leisure, economic development and regeneration services.  All 
services are supported corporately and by professional services such as 
finance, IT, HR, legal and other central support functions. 
 
Finances 
 
The Council has seen significant reductions in Government funding from 
the Spending Review 2010 onwards.  The demand for services has not 
decreased during that time.  The Council’s staffing has reduced from 
250 to 200 full time equivalents since 2010; 20% or a fifth.  Savings, 
reductions and efficiencies cumulatively totalling £7.9m have been 
identified to balance the 2020-2021. 
 
£6.9m has been achieved as at the 31st March 2019 and the remaining 
£1m comes from £0.9m in 2019-2020 and £0.1m from the 2020-2021 
General Fund revenue budget through the existing proposals agreed in 
the Council’s Budget Strategy. 
 
The Council continues to review the way services are delivered to meet 
the impact of reduced staffing and continue to implement efficiency 
measures.  Whilst the Council is unable to generate large amounts of 
additional revenue income, we do seek to release and repurpose 
existing funding and resources through transformation and reinvestment 
through service and strategic prioritisation. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Budget Strategies 
 
The Council’s Budget Strategies span an 8-9 year period and have the 
aim of reducing the core deficit in the budget (and thereby help balance 
the budget).  The savings, reductions and efficiencies achieved so far 
and those reflected in budgets total £7.9m, this is the cumulative amount 
required for the 2020-2021 budget. 
 
Amounts achieved (actuals): 
 

• Budget Strategy 1 2012-2016 £5m 
• Budget Strategy 2 2016-2019 £1.9m 

 
Amounts in budgets: 
 

• Budget Strategy 2 2019-2021 £1m 
 
Budget Proposals 
 
There are no specific service reduction proposals planned for 2020-
2021; this year will focus on ensuring that the overall total of £7.9m 
removed from the core budget is sustainable and resilient.  As part of the 
budget setting process for 2020-2021 and beyond, we would like to hear 
your views about the services that are important to you; which services 
could be a focus for generating further savings or additional income; 
whether you agree that the Borough Council element of the Council Tax 
is increased and if not which services should be reduced in your opinion. 
 
The Council would like to hear your views; please use the Budget 
Consultation Response Form. 

Page 98

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



2020-2021 Budget Consultation Response 
 
 
 
Which three services that the Borough Council delivers are important to 
you? 
 

1.  

2.  

3.  

 
Which three services should the Council focus upon to generate further 
savings? 
 

1.  

2.  

3.  

 
Which three services should the Council generate additional income 
from? 
 

1.  

2.  

3.  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



2020-2021 Budget Consultation Response 
 
 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan proposes a Council Tax 
increase of 2.99% which for a Band A property represents £4.69 per 
year or 9 pence per week; this is the Borough Council element of the 
Council Tax and excludes the shares of Cumbria County Council, the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and Parishes: 
 
Do you agree that the Borough element of the Council Tax is increased 
by 2.99% and if not which services should be reduced? 
  

Agree:  

Service 
Reductions:  

 
 
The closing date for consultation responses is the 12th January 2020. 
 
 
Please email responses to budget@barrowbc.gov.uk or post to: 
 

2020-2021 Budget Consultation 
Director of Resources 
Management Team 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria 
LA14 2LD 

 

 

Page 100

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1

mailto:budget@barrowbc.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	EC23OCT Pollingplacecheduleappendix1
	HMF09SEPT19
	Appendix 1  HMF09SEPT19 Planned Investment and Planned Maintenance Expenditure 2019 2020
	Appendix 2  HMF09SEPT19 Housing Performance Information

	7 South Cumbria Community Safety Plan
	CSPPlan_2019_

	8 Housing Management Forum Recommendations
	9 The Council Plan 2020-2024
	Council Plan 2020 2024 Version 1

	10 Risk Register and Policy
	Corporate Risk Register 01102019bjp
	Risk Management Policy

	11 Progress on Council Performance Indicators Quarter 2
	Council Performance Indicators with targets Q2 2019 JP

	12 Barrow Town Deal and update on Town Centre Funding Opportunities
	13 Budget Timetable and Assumptions
	Budget Consultation 2020-2021
	2020-21 Budget Consultation
	2020-21 Budget Consultation Response Form



